
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, April 27, 2015

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.
  

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of April 13, 2015. 

5. Monthly Operations Report for March 2015 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance    
Committee)

6. Written Communications.  

7. Oral Communications.
The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting). This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Motion 8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with 
The Covello Group, Inc. for Providing Construction Management Services for the 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project Phase 2 and Miscellaneous 
Spot Repairs Project - Phase 6 (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).

Motion 9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with West Yost 
Associates for Providing Design Services for the Plant Facilities Improvements Project 
(to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).

Motion 10. Approve a Motion to Reschedule the May 25, 2015, Board of Directors Meeting.

Information  11.    Information Items:
a. Check Register.
b. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance

Committee). 

Page 1 of 170



c. Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

d. Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 15 (to be 
reviewed by the Construction Committee).

e. Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).
f. Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of April 16, 2015.
g. Discuss Topics for the General Manager Check-in Workshop Scheduled for         

April 30, 2015.

Information  12. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, April 23, 2015, at 8:45 a.m.
b. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – scheduled for Friday, April 24, 2015, at 

9:30 a.m.
c. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Friday, April 24, 2015, at 10:00 a.m.
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.

Information  13.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

Information       14. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  

15. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the Check-in with the General Manager 
Workshop in the Boardroom on Thursday, April 30, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

16. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, May 11, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 2 of 170



NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 

BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 27, 2015 

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 

Construction Committee, Thursday, April 23, 2015, at 8:45 a.m. 

8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with The 
Covello Group, Inc. for Providing Construction Management Services for the Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project Phase 2 and Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Phase 6 
Projects.

9. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with West Yost Associates for 
Providing Design Services for the Plant Facilities Improvements Project. 

11d. Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 15. 

11e. Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects. 

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Friday, April 24, 2015, at 9:30 a.m. 

11c. Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries. 

Budget & Finance Committee, Friday, April 24, 2015, at 10:00 a.m. 

5. Monthly Operations Report for March 2015. 

11b. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report. 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.

Page 3 of 170



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

April 13, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President  
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF MARCH 23, 2015

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Board of Director’s Meeting held March 23, 2015.  Motion carried unanimously.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

APPROVE INCREASE TO PAY RANGE OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS COACH

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Treatment & Disposal Services Manager 
Lopez stated that following the December 2014 recruitment for Wastewater Operations Coach 
(Night) it was determined it would be in the District’s best interest to conduct a second 
recruitment.  Staff proposed the Wastewater Operations Coach pay range be increased to 
meet current market conditions and to increase the night shift differential.  The recommended 

Page 4 of 170



increase would bring the pay range for the Wastewater Operations Coach classification in line 
with other similar agencies, thereby making the position more attractive to qualified applicants.

It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Increase to the Pay 
Range of Wastewater Operations Coach.  Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee. The Publicly Available Pay Schedule, 
effective April 13, 2015, reflects adjustments for negotiated Classified employee salary 
increases and the Board approved adjustment to the Wastewater Operations Coach salary.  

It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Approve the Publicly 
Available Pay Schedule. Motion carried unanimously.

AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE NEWARK BACKYARD SANITARY 
SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT – PHASE 2 TO RANGER PIPELINES, INC.

This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee. Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated staff prepared and distributed a desk item to correct a typo in the memo for 
this item.  The purpose of the Project is to improve the existing gravity sewer system within the 
residential neighborhood located near the intersection of Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in 
the City of Newark.  The goal of the Project is to relocate existing backyard sewer mains and 
laterals to public streets fronting the homes. Ranger Pipelines, Inc. submitted the lowest of the 
two bids received for the Project, which was approximately 19% below the Engineer’s 
Estimate.  District staff will hold a public information meeting regarding the project at James 
Graham Elementary School at 6:00 p.m. on April 22, 2015.  Staff recommended the Board 
award the contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project – Phase 2 
to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,270.

It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by President Fernandez, to Award the 
Construction Contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project – Phase 
2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc.  Motion carried unanimously.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO             
TASK ORDER NO. 3 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS FOR PROVIDING ENGINEERING 
SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE COGENERATION PROJECT

This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated several construction contract change orders added significant scope to the 
Project, which required additional engineering services from Carollo. Staff recommended the 
Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $130,376 for providing engineering services during 
construction of the Cogeneration Project.

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Authorize the General Manager 
to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 with Carollo Engineers for Providing 
Engineering Services During Construction of the Cogeneration Project.  Motion carried 
unanimously.

Page 5 of 170



SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 36.03, SEWER USE 
ORDINANCE

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Ordinance No. 36 provides requirements for restrictions on 
discharges to the sanitary sewer, and establishes requirements for the District’s pretreatment 
program. The proposed changes to Ordinance No. 36 are to adopt an ammonia local limit, 
adjust the name and version convention, and revise both the signature requirement and 
hazardous waste discharge notification to align with current Federal Regulations.  Staff will
publish the Notice of Public Hearing in the Argus newspaper on April 15 and 22, 2015.  

It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Director Lathi, to Schedule a Public Hearing 
to Adopt Ordinance No. 36.03, Sewer Use Ordinance to be held at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday,     
May 26, 2015.  Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVE A CHANGE ORDER TO THE AGREEMENT WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR THE SEWER SERVICE CHARGE COST OF SERVICE STUDY

This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Principal Financial Analyst Scott 
stated $100,000 had been budgeted for the Cost of Service study, and the accepted bid from 
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. was $71,960.  The requested change orders are for $7,840, 
and will cover smoothing for all unit rates in the rate model and final report as well as model 
input revisions and feature changes required by the District for use of the new rate model.  The 
anticipated completion date for the Study is June 30, 2015, and the Prop. 218 Notice should 
be sent by Fall for FY 2017 sewer service charge rates.

It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve a Change Order 
to the Agreement with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the Sewer Service Charge Cost 
of Service Study.  Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION NO. 2755, MAKE RESPONSIBLE AGENCY FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FOR THE CITY OF NEWARK 
DUMBARTON TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN AREA, AND 
APPROVE ABANDONMENT OF THE FORCE MAINS WITHIN THE WETLANDS PARCEL 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated a Board Workshop was held March 9, 2015, to discuss the force 
main. The proposed resolution is required for William Lyon Homes to proceed with its portion 
of the Torian property project which will include construction of 500 residential units and 
development of a wetland preserve.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the 
contractor for the new force main will be required to provide a performance bond making a
surety company responsible if the contractor were to default on construction. District staff will 
negotiate an extended warranty for the new force mains beyond the standard one year 
warranty.  

It was moved by Vice President Toy, seconded by Director Lathi, to adopt Resolution No. 2755 
to Make Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
for the City of Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development Specific Plan Area, and 

Page 6 of 170



Approve Abandonment of the Force Mains within the Wetlands Parcel for the Development.  
Motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Cogeneration Project Construction Contract Change Order Summary
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated staff prepared and distributed a desk item to 
correct a typo in the memo for this item.  The construction contract for the Project was awarded 
to D.W. Nicholson Corporation in the amount of $10,566,358 on March 11, 2013.  Staff issued 
Project Substantial Completion on March 4, 2015, and all field work is expected to be 
completed by May 2015.  The Project was designed by Carollo Engineers and The Covello 
Group provided construction management services.  Staff has executed 97 contract change 
orders in the amount of $1,113,617, which is 10.5% of the original construction contract 
amount.  There are also 21 potential change orders currently under review for a total of 
$363,375, which represents an additional 3.4% of the original construction contract amount.  
Staff anticipates the final contract change orders total will amount to less than 15%.

Earth Day 2015
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated Environmental Compliance staff will participate 
in the Earth Day event to be jointly hosted by the City of Fremont and Washington Hospital on 
April 25, 2015.  The event will be held at the Washington Hospital Conrad E. Anderson, M.D. 
Auditorium located at 2500 Mowry Avenue in Fremont from 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.  
Environmental Compliance staff will share information related to pollution prevention including 
the use of less toxic products at home, reducing discharge of grease to the sewers, and proper 
disposal of mercury-containing devices and unused medications.  The District will publish an 
announcement for this event in the April 21, 2015, edition of the Tri-City Voice.

Discuss Topics for the General Manager Check-in Workshop Scheduled for              
April 30, 2015
General Manager Eldredge stated that, per Board direction, the General Manager Check-in 
Workshop will be held Thursday, April 30, 2015.  Staff have identified FY 2016 goals, and the 
schedule and process for the General Manager’s annual performance evaluation as topics for 
the workshop.  

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:

The Legal/Community Affairs, Construction, Budget & Finance, and Personnel Committees 
met. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:

General Manager Eldredge stated District staff met with Alameda County Water District 
staff on March 31, 2015, to discuss reclaimed water.  Discussions will be ongoing, and 
staff will provide updates to the Board.

Page 7 of 170



The District has received 47 inquiries to date regarding the Open House following 
distribution of the District Newsletter.  All feedback regarding the Newsletter has been 
positive.
The Experience Modifier, or Ex-Mod, is an indicator that reflects workers comp activities, 
and the District goal is one or less.  The District Ex-Mod for 2016 is 1.01, which is down 
from the previous number of 1.16.
Recruitment for the Human Resources Analyst position recently closed, and an offer 
has been made to the top candidate.  
A total of 14 individuals recently participated in the test for Fabrication, Maintenance, 
and Construction Coach, and interviews will be scheduled.
Recruitment for Wastewater Operations Coach (Night) is scheduled to open soon.
Recruitment has begun for Human Resources Manager and is scheduled to close on 
May 15, 2015.

OTHER BUSINESS:
Director Lathi proposed the Main Budget Workshop scheduled for Thursday, April 23 be 
rescheduled for Monday, April 20.  The Board agreed by consensus to reschedule the 
Workshop to Monday, April 20, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:44 p.m. to the Main Budget Workshop in the Boardroom on 
Monday, April 20, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the District Counsel Interviews Closed Session on Tuesday, 
April 21, 2015, at 1:00 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, 
April 27, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 27th day of April, 2015
Page 8 of 170



 

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

 
DATE: April 21, 2015 
 
TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of April 27, 2015 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for March, 2015 
  
Background 
 
Attached is the March 2015 Operations Report.  Staff is available to answer questions regarding 
information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Business Services     Rich Cortés  BS   
Collection Services     James Schofield  CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
General Manager’s Summary 
Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during March 2015. 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
There was one odor complaint received in March from Fremont.  District staff investigated the 
complaint and found a light grease odor coming from the USD main.  Environmental Compliance 
staff inspected a nearby restaurant tied to the main and found them to be in compliance.  Staff 
will continue to monitor for a reoccurrence of the odor. 
 
SAFETY:  

We had one first aid incident during the month.  An employee working in a TV van was 
overcome by carbon monoxide fumes because the wind was directing the truck exhaust 
into the truck.  The employee was moved to fresh air and checked out by Fremont Urgent 
Care.  Employee is fine. 

Page 9 of 170



The employee that had the work related injury reported in February is now off work 
waiting for surgery. 
The Security Guard is now at the drive in gate each morning when most of the contractors 
arrive.  We have reduced the number of unidentified vehicles entering the facility and are 
avoiding conflicts between pedestrians and vehicles. 
The USD Heat Illness Policy was updated to include the new requirements from Cal-OSHA 
in preparation for Summer.   
Staff worked hard to ensure the safety of guests touring the Co-Gen during the ribbon 
cutting ceremony. 

 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 Recruitments and Selection 

The General Manager and Human Resources Administrator reviewed five 
proposals from executive search firms and selected Koff & Associates to conduct 
the Human Resources Administrator, Business Services Manager (Chief Financial 
officer), and Business Services Coach recruitments over the next several months. 
Increases to all employees’ contributions (classified and unclassified) to PERS 
were increased by 1.5% effective March 1, 2015, bringing the total “classic” 
employee contribution to PERS to 6.5%. New members continue to pay 6.25% to 
PERS, which took effect in January, 2013, as part of the CalPERS Pension Reform 
Act.” 
3.5% COLA increases went into effect for classified employees on March 1, 2015. 

 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of February, the GM was involved in the following: 

Participated in the Sewer Service Charge Rate Study Board Workshop 
Participated in the Force Main Workshop 
Attended the Alameda County LAFCO meeting regarding a property annexation 
to the USD service area 
Participated in the T&D Coach and Legislative Update Combined Board Workshop 
Attended the MAC and EBDA meetings 
Attended the Fremont State of the City event 
Attended a meeting with ACWD to discuss reclaimed water options and 
alternatives 

 
Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
  Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 

Page 10 of 170



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 
 March 2015 
 

 During the recording period from March 01, 2015 through March 31, 2015, there was one odor  
 related service request received by the District. 
 

 City:  Fremont 
 
 1. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  3/29/2015 Time:   5:05 pm 
 Location:   FREMONT BL Reported By: Don 
 Wind (from): East Wind Speed:  15 mph 
 Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
  
 Response and Follow-up:

 We inspected USD mains, drain inlets and other restaurants in the area. We found a light  
 grease odor coming from the USD main. We contacted the CS Coach who had us clean the line  
 on April 2, 2015. We reported our findings to EC for follow up. EC inspected a restaurant that  
 was tied to the main where the odor was detected. EC inspected the restaurant’s grease trap  
 and pumping records and found them in compliance. We will continue to monitor to check for a  
 reoccurrence of the odor. 

Page 11 of 170



^

^

#^

#

#

#

#
#

#

!

!

#

!

#

^

#
^

!

#

#

!

#

#

#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
April 2014 to March 2015

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: March 2015

Odor Complaints: Apr. 2014 to Feb. 2015
No odor found (0)

Odor found, not related to USD (5)

Odor found, USD resolved (4)

No odor found (16)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)

^ Odor found, USD resolved (1)

1. Odor found, USD resolved

Page 12 of 170



NOTES
(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part time or temporary employees.
(2) Overtime hours includes call outs.
(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use,

Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.
(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, which the District has

no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours
per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
July 16, 2014 through April 8, 2015

Weeks to Date: 38 out of 52 (73.1%)

19.2
25.6

48.1

18.4 23.2

52.4

33.5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date

Target is 47

35.6 36.7 35.4 36.9 36.3 37.8 36.6

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

Page 13 of 170



Re
gu

la
r

(1
)

O
ve

rt
im

e
(2

)
Di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
(3

)
Sh

or
tT

er
m

Di
sa

bi
lit

y
W

or
ke

rs
Co

m
p

Si
ck (4
)

Av
er

ag
e

N
um

be
ro

f
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

At
W

or
k

Ho
ur

sP
er

W
ee

k
Pe

r
Em

pl
oy

ee

An
nu

al
Si

ck
Le

av
e

U
se

d

GM
3

4,
03

2.
53

29
.0

0
35

.6
83

0.
00

57
.5

0
19

.2
3

34
.0

26
.4

BS
22

30
,4

63
.0

8
18

4.
02

36
.7

4,
68

1.
83

43
.3

4
56

3.
75

25
.6

22
35

.1
27

.3
FM

C
23

29
,4

38
.5

0
1,

53
8.

58
35

.4
4,

67
8.

49
27

2.
65

33
0.

50
1,

10
6.

86
48

.1
21

36
.2

49
.0

TD
25

34
,5

15
.7

5
57

7.
65

36
.9

4,
18

5.
66

10
1.

72
45

9.
88

18
.4

24
34

.4
56

.9
TS

30
41

,2
41

.2
9

10
4.

92
36

.3
5,

02
3.

93
69

6.
11

23
.2

30
35

.2
34

.4
CS

30
39

,6
28

.2
2

3,
46

5.
80

37
.8

6,
09

6.
12

10
8.

54
16

3.
50

1,
57

2.
62

52
.4

31
35

.4
58

.6

Al
lG

ro
up

s
13

3
17

9,
31

9.
37

5,
89

9.
97

36
.6

25
,4

96
.0

3
52

6.
25

49
4.

00
4,

45
6.

72
33

.5
13

1
35

.2
45

.1

SI
CK

LE
AV

E
IN

CE
N

TI
VE

PR
O

GR
AM

TA
RG

ET
S

34
47

Th
e

Si
ck

Le
av

e
In

ce
nt

iv
e

Pr
og

ra
m

ta
rg

et
go

al
sa

re
47

or
le

ss
ho

ur
so

fs
ick

le
av

e
pe

re
m

pl
oy

ee
an

nu
al

ly
,a

nd
34

or
m

or
e

ho
ur

so
fa

tw
or

k
tim

e
pe

rw
ee

k
pe

re
m

pl
oy

ee
.

N
O

TE
S

(1
)R

eg
ul

ar
ho

ur
sd

oe
sn

ot
in

clu
de

ho
ur

sw
or

ke
d

by
pa

rt
tim

e
or

te
m

po
ra

ry
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

(2
)O

ve
rt

im
e

ho
ur

si
nc

lu
de

sc
al

lo
ut

s.
(3

)D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

Le
av

e
in

clu
de

sV
ac

at
io

n,
HE

C,
Ho

lid
ay

,M
AL

,F
LE

X,
Fu

ne
ra

l,
Ju

ry
Du

ty
,M

ili
ta

ry
,O

T
Ba

nk
ed

Us
e,

Pa
id

Ad
m

in
.,

SL
IP

,V
RI

P,
Ho

lid
ay

Ba
nk

ed
Us

e
le

av
es

.
(4

)S
ick

Le
av

e
in

clu
de

ss
ick

an
d

ca
ta

st
ro

ph
ic

sic
k

le
av

es
as

w
el

la
sp

ro
te

ct
ed

tim
e

of
f,

w
hi

ch
th

e
Di

st
ric

th
as

no
di

sc
re

tio
n.

An
em

pl
oy

ee
us

in
g

15
va

ca
tio

n,
11

ho
lid

ay
,2

HE
C,

an
d

5
sic

k
da

ys
w

ill
w

or
k

an
av

er
ag

e
of

34
.9

ho
ur

sp
er

w
ee

k
ov

er
th

e
co

ur
se

of
a

ye
ar

;
w

ith
20

va
ca

tio
n

da
ys

,3
4.

2
ho

ur
sp

er
w

ee
k.

LE
AV

E
HO

U
RS

FY
14

HO
U

RS
W

O
RK

ED
AN

D
LE

AV
E

TI
M

E
BY

W
O

RK
GR

O
U

P
Ju

ly
16

,2
01

4
th

ro
ug

h
Ap

ril
8,

20
15

W
ee

ks
to

Da
te

:3
8

ou
to

f5
2

(7
3.

1%
)

Av
er

ag
e

An
nu

al
Si

ck
Le

av
e

U
se

d
Pe

r
Em

pl
oy

ee
To

Da
te

AT
W

O
RK

HO
U

RS
At

W
or

k
Ho

ur
s

Pe
rE

m
pl

oy
ee

Pe
rW

ee
k

Gr
ou

p
Av

er
ag

e
N

um
be

ro
f

Em
pl

oy
ee

s

P
ag

e 
14

 o
f 1

70



 
 
 

 
HR prepared a Board resolution and other documents needed to bring Andy Morrison back as a “retired 
annuitant” for a part-time, limited duration appointment to continue knowledge transfer for the new work group 
manager, James Scofield. 
The HRA and General Manager reviewed five proposals from executive search firms bidding to undertake 
recruitments for the Human Resources Administrator, Business Services Manager, and Business Services Coach. 
The firm of Koff and Associates was selected. 
An on-line Benefits Guide was completed and made available to District staff. 
The OPPM provided training and assistance to Buyer on how to develop and issue a new External Partner Survey. 
Subsequently helped to close out, analyze and prepare summary report for MMT presentation to management 
The OPPM facilitated off-cycle team chartering for MTV and Construction teams due to management transitions. 
The OPPM presented generic Debriefing deck for District-wide use at ET meeting. 
The OPPM developed agenda and facilitated debriefing for a USA Markings incident for CS; also developed a 
process/template for their continued use in debriefing lesser incidents moving forward. 
The OPPM debriefed the General Manager on the BS Restructuring sessions with the incumbent BS WGM. 
The OPPM co-developed a Training Strategy presentation for FMC with the TPPM. 
The OPPM completed NACWA Excellence in Management (EIM) award application and entire narrative 
submission. 
The OPPM researched, prepared and presented Employer of Choice definition and list of strategic activities to ET 
(benchmarking initiative, next steps and new associated measures). 
The OPPM provided training to IT Administrator on how to develop a survey on Desired Features in a New Phone 
System. 

Performance Measures 
 

AVERAGE MONTHLY YIELD       
 

 

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 1Yr Rolling Avg Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 

March 2015 

Page 15 of 170



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2015    Year-to-date as of 3/31/15 75% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/14

  Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $3,185,534 118% $3,315,007
  Sewer Service Charges 47,448,461 24,415,770 51% 45,139,420
  Operating 848,500 717,582 85% 1,072,242
  Interest 299,000 244,342 82% 385,844
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 1,994,200 255,541 13% 297,776

 Subtotal Revenues $53,290,161 $28,818,769 54% $50,210,289

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 3,390,000 1,749,638 52% 2,424,739

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $56,680,161 $30,568,407 54% $52,635,028

Expenses % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $3,240,000 $1,978,463 61% $5,592,023
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 11,632,500 9,385,921 81% 14,195,068
  Operating 32,659,214 22,413,028 69% 30,751,966
  Special Projects 1,708,478 509,224 30% 775,361
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 543,540 407,655 75% 462,852
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,057,700 543,185 51% 784,695
  Information Systems 1,216,000 410,235 34% 848,449
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 115,990 46% 197,237
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 20,938 299% incl carbon analy 5,124
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 52,780 50% 105,559
  Misc. (A/R write-off) 0 0 0% 1,343
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,389 3,127,110 100% 4,675,361

Total Expenses $55,547,821 $38,964,529 70% $58,395,038

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $1,132,340 ($8,396,122) ($5,760,010)

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $170,900 $95,189 56% $166,233
General Manager/Admin. 1,036,505 801,297 77% 1,153,217
Business Services 4,666,100 3,481,415 75% 4,416,832
Collection Services 5,954,753 4,081,442 69% 5,460,336
Technical Services 5,247,562 3,554,381 68% 4,850,139
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,980,700 6,647,933 67% 9,739,655
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,602,694 3,751,372 67% 4,965,555

Total $32,659,214 $22,413,028 69% $30,751,966

Operating Expenses by Type % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $22,966,422 $15,914,842 69% (77%)* $21,125,985
Repairs & Maintenance 1,828,375 1,167,685 64% 1,615,427
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,453,720 1,565,684 64% 2,442,617
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,217,697 3,627,796 70% 5,493,010
Fixed Assets 193,000 137,021 71% 74,927

Total $32,659,214 $22,413,028 69% $30,751,966

* Personnel Budget Target

Page 16 of 170



 
 

 
 

    
 

         

2,700,000

47,448,461

848,500 299,000

5,384,2003,185,534

24,415,770

717,582 244,342 2,005,179
$0

$5,000,000
$10,000,000
$15,000,000
$20,000,000
$25,000,000
$30,000,000
$35,000,000
$40,000,000
$45,000,000
$50,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF proceeds,
LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget

Actual

14,872,500

32,666,214

1,708,478 543,540
1,057,700 1,216,000

250,000
3,233,389

11,364,384

22,433,966

509,224 407,655 543,185 410,235 115,990
3,179,890

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.   Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget

Actual

170,900 1,036,505

4,666,100

5,954,753
5,247,562

9,980,700

5,602,694

95,189
801,297

3,481,415
4,081,442

3,554,381

6,647,933

3,751,372

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

Operating Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

22,966,422

1,828,375 2,453,720

5,217,697

193,000

15,914,842

1,167,685 1,565,684
3,627,796

137,021
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies &
Matls

Outside Services Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type

Budget Actual

Page 17 of 170



     

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Page 18 of 170



Maturity 
Range 

Face 
Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value 

Days To 
Maturity 

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value 

Duration 
To 

Maturity 

1-3 Months 240,000.00 0.523 239,918.40 72 1.00 240,148.60 239,989.00 0.20

3-6 Months 2,785,000.00 0.541 2,819,693.20 107 11.76 2,791,683.49 2,790,228.54 0.29

6-9 Months 2,000,000.00 0.330 2,040,480.00 244 8.51 2,015,460.00 2,013,911.44 0.66

9-12 Months 3,286,000.00 0.510 3,297,558.10 329 13.75 3,296,622.20 3,294,172.93 0.90

1-2 Years 11,448,000.00 0.770 11,575,632.42 560 48.28 11,589,581.62 11,572,556.26 1.51

2-3 Years 4,000,000.00 0.880 4,001,690.00 799 16.69 4,004,830.00 4,001,681.36 2.17

Total / Average 23,759,000.00 0.686 23,974,972.12 483 100 23,938,325.91 23,912,539.53 1.31

Operating Fund Maturity Distribution

Page 19 of 170



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

H
ol

d
in

g
s

R
ep

or
t 

Fo
rm

at
: 

B
y 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

G
ro

up
 B

y:
 A

ss
et

 C
la

ss
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
or

t 
G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

A
s 

o
f 

3
/3

1
/

2
0

1
5

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

T
M

 @
 

C
os

t
N

ex
t 

C
al

l 
D

at
e

M
at

u
ri

ty
 

D
at

e
%

 o
f 

P
or

tf
o

lio

A
g

en
ci

es

FH
LB

 0
.8

 
3/

17
/2

01
7-

16
31

30
A
4G

T3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

3/
17

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

80
0

1,
00

1,
53

0.
00

0.
80

0
3/

17
/2

01
6

3/
17

/2
01

7
2.

73

FH
LB

 0
.8

 
5/

17
/2

01
7

31
30

A
4Q

54
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

3/
27

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
1,

69
0.

00
0.

80
0

1,
00

2,
09

0.
00

0.
72

0
5/

17
/2

01
7

2.
73

FH
LB

 0
.8

5 
6/

16
/2

01
7-

16
31

30
A
4G

U
0

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

3/
16

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

85
0

1,
00

1,
38

0.
00

0.
85

0
3/

16
/2

01
6

6/
16

/2
01

7
2.

73

FH
LM

C
 0

.5
 

6/
20

/2
01

6-
14

31
34

G
4N

38
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

50
0

99
9,

01
0.

00
0.

50
0

6/
20

/2
01

5
6/

20
/2

01
6

2.
73

FH
LM

C
 0

.7
5 

2/
13

/2
01

7
31

34
G

6B
Q

5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

2/
13

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

75
0

1,
00

0,
46

0.
00

0.
75

0
2/

13
/2

01
7

2.
73

FH
LM

C
 0

.9
 

5/
26

/2
01

7-
15

31
34

G
6C

E1
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

2/
26

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

90
0

99
9,

44
0.

00
0.

90
0

5/
26

/2
01

5
5/

26
/2

01
7

2.
73

FH
LM

C
 1

.0
5 

6/
30

/2
01

7-
15

31
34

G
5T

E5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/3

0/
20

14
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1.

05
0

1,
00

1,
92

0.
00

1.
05

0
6/

30
/2

01
5

6/
30

/2
01

7
2.

73

FN
M

A
 0

.5
 

3/
30

/2
01

6
31

35
G

O
V
A
8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

75
0.

00
0.

50
0

1,
00

1,
78

0.
00

0.
46

5
3/

30
/2

01
6

2.
73

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
8

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
,0

0
2

,4
4

0
.0

0
0

.7
6

9
8

,0
0

7
,6

1
0

.0
0

0
.7

5
4

2
1

.8
4

C
A

M
P

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
N

on
e

5/
31

/2
01

1
9,

79
2.

99
9,

79
2.

99
0.

07
0

9,
79

2.
99

0.
07

0
N

/A
N

/A
0.

03

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
9

,7
9

2
.9

9
9

,7
9

2
.9

9
0

.0
7

0
9

,7
9

2
.9

9
0

.0
7

0
0

.0
3

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t

A
lly

 B
an

k 
1 

10
/2

4/
20

16
02

00
6L

K
M

4
N

on
e

10
/2

3/
20

14
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
1.

00
0

24
1,

17
9.

07
1.

00
0

10
/2

4/
20

16
0.

65

02
58

7C
B
Z
2

N
on

e
10

/2
3/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
10

0
24

1,
55

8.
30

1.
10

0
10

/2
4/

20
16

0.
65

P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 1

70



D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

T
M

 @
 

C
os

t
N

ex
t 

C
al

l 
D

at
e

M
at

u
ri

ty
 

D
at

e
%

 o
f 

P
or

tf
o

lio

A
m

er
ic

an
 

Ex
pr

es
s 

B
an

k 
1.

1 
10

/2
4/

20
16

B
an

k 
of

 C
hi

na
 N

Y 
0.

5 
2/

4/
20

16
06

42
6T

C
H

0
N

on
e

2/
4/

20
15

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
50

0
24

0,
03

4.
23

0.
50

0
2/

4/
20

16
0.

65

B
ea

l B
an

k 
U

S
A
 

0.
45

 9
/2

/2
01

5
07

37
0W

LQ
7

N
on

e
12

/3
/2

01
4

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
45

0
24

0,
16

4.
69

0.
45

0
9/

2/
20

15
0.

65

B
M

W
 B

an
k 

N
or

th
 

A
m

er
ic

a 
0.

5 
3/

14
/2

01
6

05
56

8P
6V

4
N

on
e

3/
31

/2
01

4
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

76
0.

00
0.

50
0

23
9,

93
7.

28
0.

55
2

3/
14

/2
01

6
0.

65

C
ap

ita
l O

ne
 B

an
k 

1 
10

/2
4/

20
16

14
04

20
Q

G
8

N
on

e
10

/2
2/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

1.
00

0
24

1,
17

9.
07

1.
00

0
10

/2
4/

20
16

0.
65

D
is

co
ve

r 
B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

11
/2

01
5

25
46

71
D

72
N

on
e

12
/2

4/
20

13
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

91
8.

40
0.

50
0

24
0,

14
8.

60
0.

52
3

6/
11

/2
01

5
0.

65

G
re

at
 M

id
w

es
t 

B
an

k 
0.

75
 

7/
27

/2
01

6
39

08
3P

C
K
6

N
on

e
10

/2
7/

20
14

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
75

0
24

0,
38

8.
67

0.
75

0
7/

27
/2

01
6

0.
65

M
er

ri
ck

 B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

59
12

Y5
Y9

N
on

e
12

/3
0/

20
13

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
50

0
24

0,
18

8.
01

0.
50

0
6/

30
/2

01
5

0.
65

M
iz

uh
o 

B
an

k 
U

S
A
 

0.
35

 9
/4

/2
01

5
60

68
8M

K
K
9

N
on

e
3/

4/
20

15
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

35
0

24
0,

06
2.

64
0.

35
0

9/
4/

20
15

0.
65

S
an

ta
nd

er
 B

an
k 

0.
5 

2/
4/

20
16

80
28

0J
D

H
1

N
on

e
2/

4/
20

15
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

50
0

24
0,

03
4.

23
0.

50
0

2/
4/

20
16

0.
65

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
2

,6
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,6

3
9

,6
7

8
.4

0
0

.6
5

0
2

,6
4

4
,8

7
4

.7
9

0
.6

5
7

7
.2

0

C
or

p
or

at
e 

Is
su

es

C
at

er
pi

lla
r 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 1
 

3/
3/

20
17

14
91

2L
5Z

0
M

oo
dy

s-
A
2

12
/2

3/
20

14
1,

31
3,

00
0.

00
1,

30
7,

60
3.

57
1.

00
0

1,
31

7,
49

0.
46

1.
19

0
3/

3/
20

17
3.

57

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

1.
62

5 
7/

2/
20

15
36

96
2G

5Z
3

M
oo

dy
s-

A
1

3/
31

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

01
4,

53
0.

00
1.

62
5

1,
00

3,
03

0.
00

0.
46

0
7/

2/
20

15
2.

77

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

2.
37

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

36
96

2G
5F

7
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

11
/3

0/
20

12
50

0,
00

0.
00

51
7,

74
5.

00
2.

37
5

50
2,

38
5.

00
0.

98
0

6/
30

/2
01

5
1.

41

36
96

2G
2G

8
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

3/
2/

20
15

1,
08

5,
00

0.
00

1,
17

9,
51

4.
35

5.
40

0
1,

17
4,

15
4.

45
0.

89
0

2/
15

/2
01

7
3.

22

P
ag

e 
21

 o
f 1

70



D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

T
M

 @
 

C
os

t
N

ex
t 

C
al

l 
D

at
e

M
at

u
ri

ty
 

D
at

e
%

 o
f 

P
or

tf
o

lio

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

5.
4 

2/
15

/2
01

7

In
te

rn
al

tio
na

l 
B
us

in
es

s 
M

ac
hs

 
0.

45
 5

/6
/2

01
6

45
92

00
H

L8
M

oo
dy

s-
A
a3

11
/2

6/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

6,
84

0.
00

0.
45

0
99

9,
58

0.
00

0.
58

0
5/

6/
20

16
2.

72

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
C
ha

se
 

2.
6 

1/
15

/2
01

6
46

62
5H

H
W

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
3

12
/1

/2
01

4
56

6,
00

0.
00

57
7,

51
8.

10
2.

60
0

57
3,

81
6.

46
0.

77
5

1/
15

/2
01

6
1.

58

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 

C
an

ad
a 

2.
3 

7/
20

/2
01

6
78

00
8T

LB
8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
a3

12
/2

3/
20

14
1,

19
0,

00
0.

00
1,

21
7,

31
0.

50
2.

30
0

1,
21

3,
37

1.
60

0.
83

0
7/

20
/2

01
6

3.
32

U
S
 B

an
kc

or
p 

2.
2 

11
/1

5/
20

16
91

15
9H

H
B
9

M
oo

dy
s-

A
1

3/
31

/2
01

5
90

0,
00

0.
00

92
0,

30
4.

00
2.

20
0

91
8,

90
0.

00
0.

79
7

11
/1

5/
20

16
2.

51

W
el

l F
ar

go
 B

an
k

0.
75

 7
/2

0/
20

15
94

98
5H

5F
7

M
oo

dy
s-

A
a3

3/
31

/2
01

4
56

5,
00

0.
00

56
7,

41
8.

20
0.

75
0

56
5,

85
3.

15
0.

42
0

7/
20

/2
01

5
1.

55

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
8

,1
1

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
,2

9
8

,7
8

3
.7

2
2

.1
4

0
8

,2
6

8
,5

8
1

.1
2

0
.7

9
4

2
2

.6
5

LA
IF

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
N

on
e

4/
30

/2
01

1
12

,6
58

,8
84

.9
0

12
,6

58
,8

84
.9

0
0.

26
6

12
,6

58
,8

84
.9

0
0.

26
6

N
/A

N
/A

34
.5

5

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
1

2
,6

5
8

,8
8

4
.9

0
1

2
,6

5
8

,8
8

4
.9

0
0

.2
6

6
1

2
,6

5
8

,8
8

4
.9

0
0

.2
6

6
3

4
.5

5

T
re

as
u

ry

T-
B
on

d 
0.

25
 

5/
16

/2
01

6
91

28
28

V
C
1

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

4,
53

0.
00

0.
25

0
99

9,
14

0.
00

0.
48

8
5/

16
/2

01
6

2.
71

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
37

5 
2/

15
/2

01
6

91
28

28
U

M
0

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
37

5
1,

00
1,

02
0.

00
0.

39
8

2/
15

/2
01

6
2.

73

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
5 

6/
15

/2
01

6
91

28
28

V
G

2
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

3/
27

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
50

0
1,

00
1,

64
0.

00
0.

52
1

6/
15

/2
01

6
2.

73

T-
N

ot
e 

1.
37

5 
11

/3
0/

20
15

91
28

28
PJ

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
2,

00
0,

00
0.

00
2,

04
0,

48
0.

00
1.

37
5

2,
01

5,
46

0.
00

0.
33

0
11

/3
0/

20
15

5.
57

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
,0

3
4

,0
7

0
.0

0
0

.7
8

0
5

,0
1

7
,2

6
0

.0
0

0
.4

1
3

1
3

.7
4

To
ta

l 
/

 
A

ve
ra

g
e

3
6

,4
2

7
,6

7
7

.8
9

3
6

,6
4

3
,6

5
0

.0
1

0
.8

9
8

3
6

,6
0

7
,0

0
3

.8
0

0
.5

4
1

1
0

0

P
ag

e 
22

 o
f 1

70



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

A
ct

iv
it

y
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

Fr
o

m
 3

/
1

/
2

0
1

5
 T

o
 3

/
3

1
/

2
0

1
5

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
Fa

ce
 

A
m

ou
n

t/
S

h
ar

es
P

ri
n

ci
p

al
In

te
re

st
/

D
iv

id
en

d
s

C
ou

p
on

 
R

at
e

Y
TM

 @
 

C
os

t
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

To
ta

l

B
U

Y

FH
LB

 0
.8

 3
/1

7/
20

17
-1

6
31

30
A
4G

T3
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

80
0

0.
80

0
3/

17
/2

01
5

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

FH
LB

 0
.8

 5
/1

7/
20

17
31

30
A
4Q

54
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
1,

69
0.

00
20

0.
00

0.
80

0
0.

72
0

3/
27

/2
01

5
1,

00
1,

89
0.

00

FH
LB

 0
.8

5 
6/

16
/2

01
7-

16
31

30
A
4G

U
0

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
85

0
0.

85
0

3/
16

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

5.
4 

2/
15

/2
01

7
36

96
2G

2G
8

1,
08

5,
00

0.
00

1,
17

9,
51

4.
35

2,
76

6.
75

5.
40

0
0.

89
0

3/
2/

20
15

1,
18

2,
28

1.
10

M
iz

uh
o 

B
an

k 
U

S
A
 0

.3
5 

9/
4/

20
15

60
68

8M
K
K
9

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
35

0
0.

35
0

3/
4/

20
15

24
0,

00
0.

00

U
S
 B

an
kc

or
p 

2.
2 

11
/1

5/
20

16
91

15
9H

H
B
9

90
0,

00
0.

00
92

0,
30

4.
00

7,
48

0.
00

2.
20

0
0.

79
7

3/
31

/2
01

5
92

7,
78

4.
00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

5
,2

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

,3
4

1
,5

0
8

.3
5

1
0

,4
4

6
.7

5
5

,3
5

1
,9

5
5

.1
0

D
EP

O
S

IT

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

55
0.

55
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
31

/2
01

5
0.

55

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
80

0,
00

0.
00

80
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
4/

20
15

80
0,

00
0.

00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

8
0

0
,0

0
0

.5
5

8
0

0
,0

0
0

.5
5

0
.0

0
8

0
0

,0
0

0
.5

5

IN
TE

R
ES

T

B
M

W
 B

an
k 

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a 

0.
5 

3/
14

/2
01

6
05

56
8P

6V
4

0.
00

0.
00

59
5.

07
0.

50
0

0.
00

0
3/

14
/2

01
5

59
5.

07

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

55
0.

00
0

3/
31

/2
01

5
0.

55

C
at

er
pi

lla
r 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 1
 3

/3
/2

01
7

14
91

2L
5Z

0
0.

00
0.

00
6,

56
5.

00
1.

00
0

0.
00

0
3/

3/
20

15
6,

56
5.

00

FN
M

A
 0

.5
 3

/3
0/

20
16

31
35

G
O

V
A
8

0.
00

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
50

0
0.

00
0

3/
30

/2
01

5
2,

50
0.

00

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l R

et
ai

l B
an

k 
0.

95
 

3/
16

/2
01

5
36

15
7P

A
U

3
0.

00
0.

00
1,

13
0.

63
0.

95
0

0.
00

0
3/

16
/2

01
5

1,
13

0.
63

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

4.
87

5 
3/

4/
20

15
36

96
2G

P6
5

0.
00

0.
00

24
,3

75
.0

0
4.

87
5

0.
00

0
3/

4/
20

15
24

,3
75

.0
0

G
re

at
 M

id
w

es
t 

B
an

k 
0.

75
 

7/
27

/2
01

6
39

08
3P

C
K
6

0.
00

0.
00

13
8.

08
0.

75
0

0.
00

0
3/

27
/2

01
5

13
8.

08

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

3
5

,3
0

4
.3

3
3

5
,3

0
4

.3
3

P
ag

e 
23

 o
f 1

70



D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
Fa

ce
 

A
m

ou
n

t/
S

h
ar

es
P

ri
n

ci
p

al
In

te
re

st
/

D
iv

id
en

d
s

C
ou

p
on

 
R

at
e

Y
TM

 @
 

C
os

t
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

To
ta

l

M
A

TU
R

ED

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l R

et
ai

l B
an

k 
0.

95
 

3/
16

/2
01

5
36

15
7P

A
U

3
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

95
0

0.
00

0
3/

16
/2

01
5

24
0,

00
0.

00

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

4.
87

5 
3/

4/
20

15
36

96
2G

P6
5

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

4.
87

5
0.

00
0

3/
4/

20
15

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

1
,2

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,2
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,2
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

W
IT

H
D

R
A

W

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
11

/2
01

5
40

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

60
0,

00
0.

00
1,

60
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
13

/2
01

5
1,

60
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
16

/2
01

5
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

20
0,

00
0.

00
1,

20
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
26

/2
01

5
1,

20
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

3/
27

/2
01

5
1,

40
0,

00
0.

00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

5
,6

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

,6
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
5

,6
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
ag

e 
24

 o
f 1

70



Union Sanitary District's Internal Retiree Medical Fund
Quarterly Report

For Period Ended 3/31/15

Fund Balance 12/31/14: $276,857.23

Revenues:
0.00

Expenses:

Net Medical Reimbursments (4,916.08)

Transfers Out:

3/11/15 CalPERS OPEB Trust Annual Required Contrib. (ARC) (135,885.00)
(payment #3 of 4)

Ending Fund Balance 3/31/15: $136,056.15

Page 25 of 170



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

C
E

R
B

T
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
E

n
ti

ty
 #

:  
SK

B
7-

60
11

55
02

62
Q

u
ar

te
r 

E
n

d
ed

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
5

PPl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 t
he

 G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 is
 y

ou
r 

ac
tu

al
 fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
 b

al
an

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 p
er

io
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l a
cc

ru
ed

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

. P
le

as
e 

re
vi

ew
 y

ou
r 

st
at

em
en

t 
pr

om
pt

ly
. A

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 y

ou
r 

st
at

em
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
ru

e 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 u

nl
es

s 
yo

u 
co

nt
ac

t 
us

 w
it

hi
n 

30
 d

ay
s 

of
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f t
hi

s 
st

at
em

en
t.

 I
f y

ou
 h

av
e 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

va
lid

it
y 

of
 t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t 

C
E

R
BT

4U
@

ca
lp

er
s.

ca
.g

ov
.

31
5,

21
4.

76
2

31
5,

21
4.

76
2

$4
,3

96
,8

33
.1

8
$4

,3
23

,4
11

.2
2

13
.9

48
69

1
13

.9
48

69
1

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g 
U

n
it

 V
al

u
e

13
.7

93
21

3
13

.6
23

54
0

P
er

io
d

 B
eg

in
n

in
g 

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e

(1
6,

70
1.

82
1)

29
,8

59
.8

86

30
2,

05
6.

69
7

(5
,6

81
.6

43
)

9,
85

8.
41

2

31
1,

03
7.

99
3

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

E
n

d
in

g 
U

n
it

s

U
n

it
 S

al
es

 f
or

 W
it

h
d

ra
w

al
s

U
n

it
 P

u
rc

h
as

es
 f

ro
m

 C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

U
n

it
s

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y:

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y:

$4
,3

96
,8

33
.1

8
$4

,3
96

,8
33

.1
8

G
ra

n
d

 T
ot

al

(2
29

,2
74

.9
5)

(3
,3

41
.2

0)

0.
00

55
,4

62
.1

1

40
7,

65
5.

00

$4
,0

92
,9

10
.2

6

(7
9,

17
6.

76
)

(9
48

.1
8)

0.
00

10
3,

63
4.

74

13
5,

88
5.

00

$4
,2

37
,4

38
.3

8

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

E
n

d
in

g 
B

al
an

ce

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

on

A
d

m
in

 E
xp

en
se

O
th

er

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

E
ar

n
in

gs

C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

B
al

an
ce

Q
T

D
F

is
ca

l
Q

T
D

F
is

ca
l

Y
T

D
 A

cc
ru

al
0.

00
73

,4
21

.9
6

T
ra

n
sf

er
 I

n

T
ra

n
sf

er
 O

u
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
n

it
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 I
n

U
n

it
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 O
u

t

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

1

P
ag

e 
26

 o
f 1

70



St
at

em
en

t 
of

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 D

et
ai

l 
fo

r 
th

e 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

E
n

d
in

g 
03

/3
1/

20
15

U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

E
n

ti
ty

 #
:  

SK
B

7-
60

11
55

02
62

D
at

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

m
ou

n
t

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e
U

n
it

s
N

ot
es

C
h

ec
k/

W
ir

e

02
/0

5/
20

15
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
on

($
79

,1
76

.7
6)

$1
3.

93
55

39
(5

,6
81

.6
43

)

03
/0

6/
20

15
C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

$1
35

,8
85

.0
0

$1
3.

78
36

60
9,

85
8.

41
2

w
ir

e
20

15
03

06
00

09
1

31
8

If
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

an
y 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
or

 c
om

m
en

ts
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 n
ew

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

fo
rm

at
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

E
R

BT
4U

@
C

al
PE

R
S.

ca
.g

ov

C
li

en
t 

C
on

ta
ct

:

C
E

R
B

T
4U

@
C

al
P

E
R

S.
ca

.g
ov

2

P
ag

e 
27

 o
f 1

70



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2015 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

Capital Improvement Program 

Boyce Road Lift Station Project – Phase 2 –   Retention was released to the contractor on March 16, 2015. 
 
Cogeneration Project – Issued Project Substantial Completion Certificate to contractor on March 4, 2015.  
Contractor worked on punch list items.  Staff will review and negotiate remaining potential change orders 
submitted by the contractor. 
 
Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project –  Issued Project Substantial Completion Certificate to contractor.   
Contractor continues to work on punchlist items. 
 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Installation of underground Thickened Primary Sludge, 
Primary Scum, Digester Supernatant and Acid Recirculation pipelines has been completed.  Trench backfill is 
almost complete and pavement is scheduled to take place in April. New MCC-32 and new PLC-45 were installed 
inside of the Heating and Mixing Building No. 1 Electrical Room on March 20, 2015. 
 
Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Punchlist and closeout work in progress, and should be completed in 
April. 
 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project Phase 2 – Received two bids out of seven prospective 
bidders on March 31, 2015: Ranger Pipelines, Inc bid $2,085,270 and K J Woods Construction, Inc. bid 
$2,088,000.  Contract Award to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. for $2,085,270 is scheduled for the April 13, 2015 Board 
meeting. 
 

Customer Service 
Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 

Page 28 of 170



Sewer Permits Issued 

 
 
Communication & Graphics

Cogeneration Ribbon-Cutting Planning Team Leader activities; designed all graphics/posters/flyers; 
event info on Facebook 
Open House Planning Team Leader activities 
Public Website redesign – continued work with vendor and presented options to Human Resources 
Newsletter Board continued project management – mailed late March 
Union City Chamber of Commerce – Continued Board President activities, participated at City of 
Union City Economic Development monthly meeting 
Website Updates: Open House information  
Worked USD’s table with IT and CIP reps at BACWA Job Fair 

 
 
Environmental Compliance 

Pollution Prevention Program 
 
USD’s Environmental Compliance team conducts pollution prevention inspections to restaurants, car wash 
business, and other commercial facilities. EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group. We conduct over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and don’t discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
For the past month, the EC team conducted 110 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 42 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections. Inspectors identified 40 Stormwater and 11 FOG enforcement actions. Eleven of the Stormwater 
enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500. Most fines were for repeated 
violations within the same year, but two were for illicit discharges to Fremont’s storm drain system. 

 
Page 29 of 170



Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

March 
2015 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  No. of Illicit Discharge/s 2 

110 12 2 15 11 0 40  % enforcement 36% 
 
FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

March 
2015 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  % enforcement 26% 

42 3 8 0 0 0 11    
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance 

 
Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
 

# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events including        Sewer 
Science 

# of Plant Tours 

3 29 0 
 
Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has a number of pending permits as shown in the table below. USD 
inspectors are working with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
Ceramic Tech-Class II  Mountain Cascades- Groundwater 
Gooch and Housego- Class II ACWD- Groundwater 
Mission Linen-Class I  
De Anza Tile-Class II  

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name Date Permit Issued 
Preston Pipelines (Groundwater Temp.) 3/4/2015 

 
Industrial Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
New Age Linen (Class II) March 1, 2015 

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
None  

 
 

Page 30 of 170



There were no Pretreatment Program enforcement actions in March. 
 

Enforcement Action 
IU Name & 
Nature of 
Business 

Comments City 
 

Parameters 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated 
(mg/L) 

Violation 
(1) 

No  
Enforcements 
Issued 

      

 (1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 

Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 5 
 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
March 2015 Activity 

1. Boyce Road LS Phase 2 – 
Thomas  

$330 12/14 100% 100% Retention was released 
to the contractor on 
March 16, 2015. 

2. Cogeneration Project – 
Raymond 

$10,566 2/15 99% 100% Issued Substantial 
Completion.  Punch list 
work is in progress. 

3. Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project – 
Curtis 

$9,990 9/16 29% 33% Completed installation 
of TPS, PSC, DSN and 
Acid Recirc. pipelines. 

4. Upper Hetch Hetchy SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$2,971 1/15 100% 100% Punchlist and closeout 
in progress. 

5. Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project - 
Chris P. 

$779 12/14 99% 100% Issued Substantial 
Completion.  Punchlist 
in progress. 

 
 

Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 16 
 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
March 2015 Activity 

1. Irvington Basin Master 
Plan Update – Capacity 
Assessment - Rollie 

$231 6/15 
 

46% 78% Flow model update in 
progress. 

2. Local Limits and 
Wastewater Treatability 
Study – Michael D. 

$107 6/15 100% 100% Study is complete 

Page 31 of 170



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
March 2015 Activity 

3. Seismic Study - Raymond $210 6/15 80% 80% Consultant continued 
with detailed seismic 
evaluation of select 
buildings.  Conducted 
site visit to inspect the 
structural elements of 
these buildings. 

4. Cast Iron Lining Phase VI – 
Andrew 

In-
House 

12/14 100% 100% Design is complete. 

5. Miscellaneous Spot Re-
pairs Phase VI – Andrew 

In-
House 

4/15 90% 98% 90% design under 
review. 

6. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$248 4/15 96% 96% 100% design submittal 
and staff review 
completed.   

7. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E. 

$59 5/15 65% 67% Alternatives evaluation 
in progress; due April 
10, 2015. 

8. Plant Site Use Study – 
Curtis 

$200 6/15 74% 79% Draft report received 
from RMC on March 
10th. Internal meeting 
held with USD staff on 
March 31, 2015. 

9. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Chris P. 

$78 6/15 60% 60% Beecher Engineering 
worked on the 75 
design submittal   

10. Generator Controls 
Upgrade Project – Chris P. 

$72 6/15 40% 50% Consultant site working 
on evaluating the 
standby generators. 

11. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project – 
Thomas 

$55 
(Pre-

design) 

6/15 25% 25% Thirteen small projects 
had been selected. 
Negotiating with 
consultant West Yost 
on task order No. 2 for 
detailed design.  

12. Plant Lighting Study – 
Thomas 

$50 3/15 95% 95% Reviewed and 
commented on 
Consultant TRC’s draft 
lighting study report. 
TRC is working on the 
final report . 

13. Administrative and Field 
Operations Buildings Leak 
Investigation – Chris P. 

$51 10/14 100% 100% Final report has been 
completed. 

14. Pump Station Master Plan 
– Raymond 

$175 7/15 40% 40% Consultant continued 
with gathering District 
data.  CIP workshop is 
scheduled on May 5, 
2015. 

Page 32 of 170



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
March 2015 Activity 

15. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation – Phase 2 – 
Rollie/Al B. 

$200 3/15 100% 100% Advertise for bid on 
March 3, 2015.  
Opened bids on March 
31, 2015. 

16. Aeration Blower Project – 
Chris P. 

$96 7/15 20% 30% Selected final 
placement of new 
Blower, Carollo 
working on 50% design 
submittal. 

 

Page 33 of 170



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

March 2015  
   
Progress/Accomplishments     
           

 Completed over 34 miles of cleaning and over 13 miles of televising of sewer lines in March 
 Responded to 24 service request calls in March 
 Completed a total of 28 main repairs in March 
 Marked and located all sewer lines (Underground Service Alerts) 
 Provided support on the following projects: Upper Hetch Hetcy Trunk Line Lining, Alvarado Site Use Study. 
 The Construction Team celebrated going over 1200 days without a reportable injury. 
 Continued training of 4 Collection System Worker I employees 
 Continued on our progress on catching up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 Matt Lubina, Kevin Coffee and Jose Rodrigues all passed their CWEA Grade 3 in Collection Systems Operation 
 The Construction and Maintenance Team began re-chartering with their new coaches.  

 
Training for Collections included;  

Training for SOP’s on Relieving Stoppages and Use of the Magnetic Manhole Cover Lifter. CS staff was also recertified on 
forklift operation and completed the IT Security Video. 
 
Future Planning 
 

 Continue effort of to catch up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 
Performance Measures 

Page 34 of 170



 
               Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 

    
C/S Maintenance Status: 

  

Page 35 of 170



Prepared for Cogen ribbon-cutting event.

Performance Measurements

Future Planning

Complete installation and testing of centrifuge #3.
Replace fuel control cable on Cogen #2.

Other

Complete installation and testing of Irvington pump #2.

Completed 98% preventive maintenance activities for the month of March.
Completed 85 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of March.
Installed 2 new air compressors and motors in Alvarado Pump Station.
Overhauled Alvarado Pump Station #1 sewage pump.
Replaced coolant jumper tubes on generators #5/6.

                FMC 
                 Activities Report

              March 2015

Progress/Accomplishments

0

5

10

15

20

Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Priority A Repairs Required 

Total Target

Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Page 36 of 170



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o.
  o

f  
W

O
s 

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month 

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days 

# WO's Target

Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Page 37 of 170



Submitted  the NACWA Peak Performance award application.

Researched and conducted laboratory and field analysis to determine the cause of digester 
foaming.
Characterized cheese processing waste and deterimined parameters for pilot field testing.
Submitted a testing proposal and SOP to the State Water Resources Control Board and the EPA 
to pilot the codigestion of waste from cheese manufacturing.

Plan for the pilot testing of codigestion of organic waste from a cheese manufacturer.

Scheduled the consultant site visit for the BACWA Nutrient reduction study as required under 
the Nutrient Watershed permit.

Finalize the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study and schedule a board workshop.

Future Planning

Schedule a meeting with the Regional Board to discuss progress with the Hayward Marsh 
Rehabilitation Options Study.

Provide operational data for the cogeneration evaluation for the SGIP grant.

Prepare for the ELAP recertification of the treatment plant laboratory.

Plan for the full scale testing of Calcium nitrate to control odor and corrosion in the transport 
system .

Cogen system produced 74% of power consumed for the month of March.

Provide IRWMP application updates for the potential inclusion of a Hayward Marsh 
rehabilitation project under the BACWA and shoreline resilience group regional projects. 

Other

Prepare for the District Open house scheduled for May.

Attended WEF Biofilm treatment Webinar.

Provided operational data in support of the  Irvington Basin Master Plan.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

March 2015

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 97% preventive maintenance activities for the month of February.

Met with East Bay Regional Park District and provided comments for finalizing the Hayward 
Marsh Rehabilitation Options Study.

Research opportunities for testing digester enzymes to increase digester gas production at the 
treatment plant.

Page 38 of 170



Performance Measurements

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD Flow MGD

29%

67% 69% 74% 77% 74%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh/10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Jan 2015 Feb 2015 Mar 2015
Copper, μg/l 78 3.3 4.9 5.9
Mercury, μg/l 0.066 0.00235 0.00303 0.00219
Cyanide, μg/l 42 < 3.0 E 3.0 E 3.0
Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 42 - 46 40 - 50 38 - 45
Dioxin-Toxicity Equivalent (TEQ), μg/l 2.8 x 10-8 not tested not tested not tested
Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

500 23 - 35 12 - 31 11 - 42
1100 44 - 79 33 - 75 40 - 75

Enterococci *
242 30 - 96 20 - 63 10 - 62

* Enterococci values are the weekly concentration range not the 5-Sample Geometric Mean range.

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 
concentration.

Page 39 of 170



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 20, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Rollie R. Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach
Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No.8 - Meeting of April 27, 2015
Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task 
Order No. 1 with The Covello Group, Inc. to Provide Construction 
Management Services for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project - Phase 2 and the Miscellaneous Spot Repairs 
Project - Phase 6  

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement 
and Task Order No. 1 with The Covello Group, Inc. in the amount of $191,640 to 
provide construction management services for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project - Phase 2 and the Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Project - Phase 6.
Funds for the projects have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund.

Background

The Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project - Phase 2 is the second 
phase of the three-phased project to improve the existing sewer system within the 
residential neighborhood located northerly of the intersection of Diary Avenue and 
Cherry Street in the city of Newark.  A location map depicting the three phases is 
attached. Phase 1 of the project relocated 33 sewer laterals from the backyard of 
homes along Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street and was completed in late summer 2014.
Phase 2 of the project will include the relocation of 93 sanitary sewer laterals to new 
sanitary sewer mains that will be constructed along George Avenue, Jennifer Street, 
Deborah Street, Leone Street and parts of Zulmida Avenue and Noel Avenue. The 
construction contract for Phase 2 was recently awarded to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. at the 

Page 40 of 170



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of April 27, 2015
Page 2 

April 13, 2015 Board Meeting in the amount of $2,085,270. Construction is scheduled 
to begin in May and finish by late September 2015.

Design of the Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Project - Phase 6 is near completion and the 
project is scheduled to be advertised for bids in May 2015.  The project involves the 
repair of broken or sagging sewer pipes at six sites throughout the District; three sites 
are in Union City and three sites are located in Fremont.  The Engineer’s estimate for 
the project is being finalized and is expected to be over $400,000. Construction is 
expected to start in July and finish by late October 2015. Due to the nature and scope 
of each project and the overlapping of construction schedules, staff is recommending 
awarding construction management services for both projects to one consultant.
Sharing of construction management and inspection will result in efficiency and cost-
savings for the District.

Task Order No. 1

The total negotiated cost proposal for Task Order No. 1 is $191,640, which represents 
7.7% of the total construction contract estimated at $2.5 million. The 7.7% falls within 
the typical range of fees for similar types of projects, which is between 6% and 10% of 
the total project construction amount. Staff believes that the price is reasonable given 
the scope of work and the duration of the projects’ construction period. 

The scope of work for Task Order No. 1 includes conducting pre-construction surveys, 
contractor schedule review, processing of submittals and clarification requests, 
processing of progress payments and change order requests, construction inspection, 
project coordination, and general contract administration. 

The Covello Group, Inc. is very knowledgeable and experienced.  Their experience and 
knowledge has been demonstrated on several projects that they completed for the 
District in the last few years. Work under Task Order No. 1 will begin in May 2015, and 
is expected to be completed by late October 2015. 

Staff recommends the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to execute an
Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with The Covello Group, Inc. in the amount of 
$191,640 to provide construction management services for the for the Newark 
Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project - Phase 2 and Miscellaneous Spot 
Repairs Project - Phase 6. 

PRE/SEG/RRA/ADB:ks 

Attachments: Agreement with The Covello Group
Task Order No. 1 
Newark Backyard Relocation Phase 2 Vicinity Map
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs Phase 6 Location Map

Page 41 of 170



CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE NEWARK BACKYARD 
SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT - PHASE 2 AND THE 

MISCELLANEOUS SPOT REPAIR PROJECT - PHASE 6 

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
AND

THE COVELLO GROUP
FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT MADE AS OF _____________, 20__, BETWEEN 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as District), and THE 
COVELLO GROUP (hereinafter referred to as Engineer).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, District intends to construct the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project – Phase 2 and the Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot 
Repairs Project – Phase 6 (hereinafter referred to as Projects), and,

WHEREAS, District requires certain professional services in connection with the 
Project (hereinafter referred as Services); and

WHEREAS, Engineer is qualified and prepared to provide such Services;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER

1.1 Specific Services and the associated scope of services, payment, 
schedule, and personnel will be defined in specific Task Order as 
mutually agreed by District and Engineer.

1.2 All Task Orders will by reference incorporate the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement, and become formal amendments hereto.

Page 1 

Page 42 of 170



ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION

2.1 Compensation for consulting services performed under this Agreement 
shall include:

(1) Direct labor costs, multiplied by an agreed upon fixed factor 
(the Multiplier), to compensate for fringe benefits, indirect 
costs, and profit.

(2) Non-labor direct project charge not included in the fixed factor 
and acceptable, without any markup.

(3) Subconsultant costs, with a maximum markup of 5%.

Definitions are as follows:

(a) Direct labor is salaries and wages paid to personnel for time 
directly chargeable to the project.  Direct labor does not 
include the cost of Engineer’s statutory and customary 
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, and medical 
and retirement benefits nor the cost of the time of executive 
and administrative personnel and others whose time is not 
identifiable to the project.

(b) Fringe benefits include Engineer’s statutory and customary 
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, medical and 
retirement benefits, incentive pay, tuition, and other costs 
classified as employee benefits.

(c) Indirect costs are allocations of costs that are not directly 
chargeable to a specific engagement and are commonly 
referred to as Engineer’s overhead.  Indirect costs include 
provisions for such things as clerical support, office space, 
light and heat, insurance, statutory and customary employee 
benefits, and the time of executive and administrative 
personnel and others whose time is not identifiable to the 
Project or to any other project.  Under no circumstances can 
the same labor costs be charged as direct labor and also 
appear at the same time as indirect costs, and vice versa.

(d) The Multiplier is a multiplicative factor which is applied to 
direct labor costs, and compensates Engineer for fringe 
benefits and indirect costs (overhead) and profit.

(e) Other non-labor direct project charges shall be included in the 
overhead and these charges include typical expenses as cost 

Page 2 

Page 43 of 170



of transportation and subsistence, printing and reproduction, 
computer time and programming costs, identifiable supplies, 
outside consultant’s charges, subcontracts, and charges by 
reviewing authorities.”

Alternatively, the District and the Engineer may agree to utilize the 
fully-encumbered hourly rates and fees for Services performed by the 
Engineer.  These hourly rates and fees shall be based on the 
Engineer’s rate schedule published at the time this Agreement or Task 
Order is executed and shall be attached to each applicable Task 
Order.

2.2 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the prevailing Internal 
Revenue Service’s standard mileage rate.

2.3 A Cost Ceiling will be established for each Task Order which is based 
upon estimated labor-hours and cost estimates. Costs as described 
above, comprising direct labor, overhead cost, and other direct costs, 
shall be payable up to a Cost Ceiling as specified in the Task Order.  A 
Maximum Fee Ceiling, or Task Order Firm Ceiling, will also be 
established for each Task Order which includes the Cost Ceiling plus 
the Professional Fee.

2.4 Engineer shall invoice District monthly for the actual costs incurred, 
and a pro-rated portion of the Professional Fee for work performed 
during the previous month.  If the Maximum Fee Ceiling is reached, the 
Engineer will complete the agreed-upon work for the Maximum Fee 
Ceiling.  With District staff approval, labor hours may be reallocated 
within the tasks without renegotiation in such a manner so as not to 
exceed the Maximum Fee Ceiling.

2.5 The Engineer shall provide the District with a review of the budget 
amounts when 75 percent of the Cost Ceiling for any task has been 
expended.  Engineer may request a revision in the Cost Ceiling for 
performance of this Agreement, and will relate the rationale for the 
revision to the specific basis of estimate as defined in the Scope of 
Services.  Such notification will be submitted to the District at the 
earliest possible date.  The authorized Cost Ceiling shall not be 
exceeded without written approval of the District.

2.6 The Professional Fee will not be changed except in the case of a 
written amendment to the Agreement which alters the Scope of 
Services.  District and Engineer agree to negotiate an increase or 
decrease in Cost Ceiling and Professional Fee for any change in 
Scope of Services required at any time during the term of this 

Page 3 

Page 44 of 170



Agreement.  Engineer will not commence work on the altered Scope of
Services until authorized by District.

2.7 Direct labor rates are subject to revision to coincide with Engineer’s 
normal salary review schedule.  Adjustments in direct labor rates shall 
not affect the firm ceiling without prior written authorization of the 
District.

2.8 District shall pay Engineer in accordance with each Task Order for 
Services. 

2.9 Engineer shall submit monthly statements for Services rendered.  
District will make prompt monthly payments in response to Engineer's 
monthly statements.

ARTICLE 3 - PERIOD OF SERVICE

3.1 Engineer's services will be performed and the specified services 
rendered and deliverables submitted within the time period or by the 
date stipulated in each Task Order.

3.2 Engineer's services under this Agreement will be considered complete 
when the services are rendered and/or final deliverable is submitted 
and accepted by District.

3.3 If any time period within or date by which any of the Engineer's 
services are to be completed is exceeded through no fault of Engineer, 
all rates, measures and amounts of compensation and the time for 
completion of performance shall be subject to equitable adjustment.

ARTICLE 4 - DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

District will do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of 
Engineer.

4.1 Provide all criteria and full information as to District's requirements for 
the services assignment and designate in writing a person with 
authority to act on District's behalf on all matters concerning the 
Engineer's services.

4.2 Furnish to Engineer all existing studies, reports and other available 
data pertinent to the Engineer's services, obtain or authorize Engineer 
to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required, and furnish 
to Engineer services of others required for the performance of 

Page 4 

Page 45 of 170



Engineer's services hereunder, and Engineer shall be entitled to use 
and rely upon all such information and services provided by District or 
others in performing Engineer's services under this Agreement.

4.3 Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter 
upon public and private property as required for Engineer to perform 
services hereunder.

4.4 Perform such other functions as are indicated in each Task Order 
related to duties of District.

4.5 Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this 
Section.

ARTICLE 5 - STANDARD OF CARE

5.1 Engineer shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in 
the performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a 
professional Engineer under similar circumstance and Engineer shall, 
at no cost to District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy the 
foregoing standard of care.

ARTICLE 6 - OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE

6.1 Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment or services furnished by others, or over contractors', 
subcontractors' , or vendors' methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding or market conditions or economic conditions, 
Engineer's cost estimate and economic analysis shall be made on the 
basis of qualification and experience as a professional engineer.

6.2 Since Engineer has no control over the resources provided by others 
to meet contract schedules, Engineer's forecast schedules shall be 
made on the basis of qualification and experience as a professional 
Engineer.

6.3 Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual 
project costs will not vary from his cost estimates or that actual 
schedules will not vary from his forecast schedules.

Page 5 

Page 46 of 170



ARTICLE 7 - SUBCONTRACTING

7.1 No subcontract shall be awarded by Engineer until prior written 
approval is obtained from the District.

ARTICLE 8 - ENGINEER-ASSIGNED PERSONNEL

8.1 Engineer shall designate in writing an individual to have immediate 
responsibility for the performance of the services and for all matters 
relating to performance under this Agreement.  Key personnel to be 
assigned by Engineer will be stipulated in each Task Order.  
Substitution of any assigned person shall require the prior written 
approval of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If 
the District determines that a proposed substitution is not responsible 
or qualified to perform the services then, at the request of the District, 
Engineer shall substitute a qualified and responsible person.

ARTICLE 9 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

9.1 All work products, drawings, data, reports, files, estimate and other 
such information and materials (except proprietary computer programs, 
including source codes purchased or developed with Engineer monies) 
as may be accumulated by Engineer to complete services under this 
Agreement shall be owned by the District.

9.2 Engineer shall retain custody of all project data and documents other 
than deliverables specified in each Task Order, but shall make access 
thereto available to the District at all reasonable times the District may 
request.  District may make and retain copies for information and 
reference.

9.3 All deliverables and other information prepared by Engineer pursuant 
to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect to this project.  
They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by 
District or others on extensions of this Project or on any other project.  
Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by Engineer for the 
specific purpose intended will be at District's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to Engineer; and District shall indemnify and 
hold harmless Engineer against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from such 
reuse.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle Engineer to 
further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by District and 
Engineer.

Page 6 

Page 47 of 170



ARTICLE 10 - RECORDS OF LABOR AND COSTS

10.1 Engineer shall maintain for all Task Orders, records of all labor and 
costs used in claims for compensation under this Agreement.  Records 
shall mean a contemporaneous record of time for personnel; a 
methodology and calculation of the Multiplier for fringe benefits and 
indirect costs; and invoices, time sheets, or other factors used as a 
basis for determining other non-labor Project charges.  These records 
must be made available to the District upon reasonable notice of no 
more than 48 hours during the period of the performance of this
Agreement.

10.2 After delivery of Services (completion of Task Orders) under this 
Agreement, the Engineer's records of all costs used in claims for 
compensation under this Agreement shall be available to District's 
accountants and auditors for inspection and verification.  These 
records will be maintained by Engineer and made reasonably 
accessible to the District for a period of three (3) years after completion 
of Task Orders under this Agreement.

10.3 Engineer agrees to cooperate and provide any and all information 
concerning the Project costs which are a factor in determining 
compensation under this Agreement as requested by the District or 
any public agency which has any part in providing financing for, or 
authority over, the Services which are provided under the Agreement.

10.4 Failure to provide documentation or substantiation of all Project costs 
used as a factor in compensation paid under Article 2 hereof will be 
grounds for District to refuse payment of any statement submitted by 
the Engineer and for a back charge for any District funds, including 
interest from payment; or grant, matching, or other funds from 
agencies assisting District in financing the Services specified in this 
Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE

Engineer shall provide and maintain at all times during the performance of the 
Agreement the following insurances:

11.1 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for 
protection of Engineer's employees as required by law and as will 
protect Engineer from loss or damage because of personal injuries, 
including death to any of his employees.

Page 7 

Page 48 of 170



11.2 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  Engineer agrees to 
carry a Comprehensive Automobile Liability Policy providing bodily 
injury liability.  This policy shall protect Engineer against all liability 
arising out of the use of owned or leased automobiles both passenger 
and commercial.  Automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles and 
equipment (owned, not owned, or hired, licensed or unlicensed for 
road use) shall be covered under this policy.  Limits of liability for 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less than 
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit.

11.3 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance as will protect Engineer 
and District from any and all claims for damages or personal injuries, 
including death, which may be suffered by persons, or for damages to 
or destruction to the property of others, which may arise from the 
Engineer's operations under this Agreement, which insurance shall 
name the District as additional insured.  Said insurance shall provide a 
minimum of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit coverage for personal 
injury, bodily injury, and property damage for each occurrence and 
aggregate.  Such insurance will insure Engineer and District from any 
and all claims arising from the following:

1. Personal injury;
2. Bodily injury;
3. Property damage;
4. Broad form property damage;
5. Independent contractors;
6. Blanket contractual liability.

11.4 Engineer shall maintain a policy of professional liability insurance, 
protecting it against claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, in an amount of not 
less than $1,000,000.  The said policy shall cover the indemnity 
provisions under this Agreement.

11.5 Engineer agrees to maintain such insurance at Engineer's expense in 
full force and effect in a company or companies satisfactory to the 
District.  All coverage shall remain in effect until completion of the 
Project.

11.6 Engineer will furnish the District with certificates of insurance and 
endorsements issued by Engineer's insurance carrier and 
countersigned by an authorized agent or representative of the 
insurance company.  The certificates shall show that the insurance will 
not be cancelled without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to 
the District.  The certificates for liability insurance will show that liability 
assumed under this Agreement is included.  The endorsements will 

Page 8 

Page 49 of 170



show the District as an additional insured on Engineer’s insurance 
policies for the coverage required in Article 11 for services performed 
under this Agreement, except for workers’ compensation and 
professional liability insurance.

11.7 Waiver of Subrogation:  Engineer hereby agrees to waive subrogation 
which any insurer of Engineer may acquire from Engineer by virtue of 
the payment of any loss.  Engineer agrees to obtain any endorsement 
that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation.

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the District for all work performed by the 
Engineer, its employees, agents and subconsultants.

ARTICLE 12 - LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

12.1 Having considered the risks and potential liabilities that may exist 
during the performance of the Services, and in consideration of the 
promises included herein, District and Engineer agree to allocate such 
liabilities in accordance with this Article 12.  Words and phrases used 
in this Article shall be interpreted in accordance with customary 
insurance industry usage and practice.

12.2 Engineer shall indemnify and save harmless the District and all of their 
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, demands, 
or causes of action of every name or nature to the extent caused by 
the negligent error, omission, or act of Engineer, its agents, servants, 
or employees in the performance of its services under this Agreement.

12.3 In the event an action for damages is filed in which negligence is 
alleged on the part of District and Engineer, Engineer agrees to defend 
District.  In the event District accepts Engineer's defense, District 
agrees to indemnify and reimburse Engineer on a pro rata basis for all 
expenses of defense and any judgment or amount paid by Engineer in 
resolution of such claim.  Such pro rata share shall be based upon a 
final judicial determination of negligence or, in the absence of such 
determination, by mutual agreement.

12.4 Engineer shall indemnify District against legal liability for damages 
arising out of claims by Engineer's employees.  District shall indemnify 
Engineer against legal liability for damages arising out of claims by 
District's employees.

12.5 Indemnity provisions will be incorporated into all Project contractual 
arrangements entered into by District and will protect District and 
Engineer to the same extent.

Page 9 

Page 50 of 170



12.6 Upon completion of all services, obligations and duties provided for in 
the Agreement, or in the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, the terms and conditions of this Article shall survive.

12.7 To the maximum extent permitted by law, Engineer’s liability for 
District’s damage will not exceed the aggregate compensation 
received by Engineer under this Agreement or the maximum amount of 
professional liability insurance available at the time of any settlement 
or judgment, whichever is greater.

ARTICLE 13 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Engineer undertakes performance of the Services as an independent contractor 
and shall be wholly responsible for the methods of performance.  District will 
have no right to supervise the methods used, but District will have the right to 
observe such performance.  Engineer shall work closely with District in 
performing Services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

In performance of the Services, Engineer will comply with applicable regulatory 
requirements including federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders, 
codes, criteria and standards.  Engineer shall procure the permits, certificates, 
and licenses necessary to allow Engineer to perform the Services.  Engineer 
shall not be responsible for procuring permits, certificates, and licenses required 
for any construction unless such responsibilities are specifically assigned to 
Engineer in Task Order.

ARTICLE 15 - NONDISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Engineer shall consider all information provided by District and all drawings, 
reports, studies, design calculations, specifications, and other documents 
resulting from the Engineer's performance of the Services to be proprietary 
unless such information is available from public sources.  Engineer shall not 
publish or disclose proprietary information for any purpose other than the 
performance of the Services without the prior written authorization of District or in 
response to legal process.

Page 10

Page 51 of 170



ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

16.1 The obligation to continue Services under this Agreement may be 
terminated by either party upon seven days written notice in the event 
of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with 
the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party.

16.2 District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend 
performance thereof for District's convenience upon written notice to 
Engineer, and Engineer shall terminate or suspend performance of 
Services on a schedule acceptable to District.  In the event of 
termination or suspension for District's convenience, District will pay 
Engineer for all services performed and costs incurred including 
termination or suspension expenses.  Upon restart of a suspended 
project, equitable adjustment shall be made to Engineer's 
compensation.

ARTICLE 17 - UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES

17.1 Neither District nor Engineer shall be considered to be in default of this 
Agreement if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to 
uncontrollable forces, the effect of which, by the exercise of reasonable 
diligence, the nonperforming party could not avoid.  The term 
"uncontrollable forces" shall mean any event which results in the 
prevention or delay of performance by a party of its obligations under 
this Agreement and which is beyond the control of the nonperforming 
party.  It includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, storms, 
lightening, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, inability to 
procure permits, licenses, or authorizations from any state, local, or 
federal agency or person for any of the supplies, materials, accesses, 
or services required to be provided by either District or Engineer under 
this Agreement, strikes, work slowdowns or other labor disturbances, 
and judicial restraint.

17.2 Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if 
nonperformance is due to uncontrollable forces which are removable 
or remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, removed or remedied with 
reasonable dispatch.  The provisions of this Article shall not be 
interpreted or construed to require Engineer or District to prevent, 
settle, or otherwise avoid a strike, work slowdown, or other labor 
action.  The nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of 
being prevented or delayed from performance by an uncontrollable 
force, give written notice to the other party describing the 
circumstances and uncontrollable forces preventing continued 

Page 11

Page 52 of 170



performance of the obligations of this Agreement.  The Engineer will be 
allowed reasonable negotiated extension of time or adjustments for 
District initiated temporary stoppage of services.

ARTICLE 18 - MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 A waiver by either District or Engineer of any breach of this Agreement 
shall not be binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in 
writing.  In the event of a written waiver, such a waiver shall not affect 
the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach.

18.2 The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement, or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or 
provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way effect the validity or 
enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement.  Any 
void provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the 
balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be 
void.

ARTICLE 19 - INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION

19.1 This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 15), together with all Task 
Orders executed by the undersigned, is adopted by District and
Engineer as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
Agreement between District and Engineer.  This Agreement 
supersedes all prior agreements, contracts, proposals, 
representations, negotiations, letters, or other communications 
between the District and Engineer pertaining to the Services, whether 
written or oral.

19.2 The Agreement may not be modified unless such modifications are 
evidenced in writing signed by both District and Engineer.

ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

20.1 District and Engineer each binds itself and its directors, officers, 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party, in respect to all covenants, 
agreements, and obligations of this Agreement.

Page 12

Page 53 of 170



20.2 Neither District nor Engineer shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights 
under or interest in (including, but without limitation, monies that may 
become due or monies that are due) this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other, except to the extent that the effect of this 
limitation may be restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under 
this Agreement.  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent 
Engineer from employing such independent engineers, associates, and 
subcontractors as he may deem appropriate to assist him/her in the 
performance of the Services hereunder and in accordance with Article 
7.

20.3 Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to 
anyone other than District and Engineer.

ARTICLE 21 – INFORMATION SYSTEM SECURITY

When the District determines this article is applicable, the Engineer shall obtain 
written approval from the District representative prior to accessing District internal 
systems through real-time computer connections.  Upon approval, the Engineer will 
use only in-bound connections to accomplish a legitimate business need and a 
previously defined and approved task.  As a condition of approval, the Engineer shall:

a) Be running a current operating system supported by the District with up-to-
date security patches applied as defined in the District COE/Non-COE 
document.

b) Have anti-virus software installed on his/her personal computer with up-to-
date virus signatures.

c) Have personal firewall software installed and enabled on their computer.

d) Understand and sign the District’s Electronic Equipment Use Policy, 
number 2160. 

The District reserves the right to audit the security measures in effect on Engineer’s
connected systems without prior notice.  The District also reserves the right to 
terminate network connections immediately with all Engineer’s systems not meeting 
the above requirements.

Page 13

Page 54 of 170



ARTICLE 22 – EMPLOYEE BACKGROUND CHECK

When the District determines this article is applicable, the Engineer, at no additional 
expense to the District, shall conduct a background check for each of its employees, 
as well as for the employees of its subconsultants and subcontractors, who will have 
access to District’s computer systems, either through on-site or remote access
(collectively "Engineer Employees"), or whose contract work requires a presence on 
the District’s premises.  The minimum background check process for any District 
consultant shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. Criminal felony and misdemeanor records search of the employee’s county 
and state of residence, and

2. Federal criminal records search of the National Criminal Database.

The background check shall be conducted and the results submitted to the District 
prior to initial access by Engineer Employees.  If at any time it is discovered that any 
Engineer Employee has a criminal record that includes a felony or misdemeanor, the 
Engineer is required to inform the District immediately and the District will assess the 
circumstances surrounding the conviction, time frame, nature, gravity, and relevancy 
of the conviction to the job duties, to determine whether the Engineer Employee will 
be placed on a District assignment.  The District may withhold consent at its sole 
discretion.  The District may also conduct its own criminal background check of the 
Engineer Employees.  Failure of the Engineer to comply with the terms of this 
paragraph may result in the termination of its contract with the District.

ARTICLE 23 - EXCEPTIONS

22.1 Articles 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, 2.7 shall be deleted in their entirety.

Article 2.1 shall be added to read:

“2.1 District shall pay Engineer for the performance of Services on 
an actual time basis at mutually agreeable billing rates; and for 
materials and direct costs with no markup; the total pay not to 
exceed amount as stipulated in each Task Order.”

Article 2.2 shall be added to read:

“2.2 Billing rates shall be in accordance with a rate schedule 
included with each Task Order.  Billing rates are subject to 
revision to coincide with Engineer’s normal salary review 
schedule.”

Page 14

Page 55 of 170



Article 2.3 shall be added to read:

“2.3 Each Task Order’s Scope of Services may be altered by mutual 
agreement at any time during the term of this Agreement.  
Engineer will not commence work on the altered Scope of 
Services until authorized by District.”

22.2 Articles 2.8 and 2.9 shall be changed to Articles 2.4 and 2.5 
respectively.

22.3 Article 10.1: the phrase, “a methodology and calculation of the 
Multiplier for fringe benefits and indirect costs” shall be deleted.

22.4 Article 10.4 shall be deleted in its entirety.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT THE COVELLO GROUP

By: ___________________________ By: _________________________

Name: Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.  Name: Michael K. Jaeger, P.E.

Title: General Manager/District Engineer Title: Vice President, Lic. #C55691

Date: Date: 

Page 15

Page 56 of 170



CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE NEWARK BACKYARD 
SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT - PHASE 2 AND THE 

MISCELLANEOUS SPOT REPAIR PROJECT - PHASE 6

TASK ORDER NO. 1 

To The

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

AND

THE COVELLO GROUP

FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dated __________, 20___

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Task Order No. 1 is to provide construction 
management, administration and field observation services for the Newark 
Backyard Sewer Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 (Project 
No. 800-436) and the Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs Project 
– Phase 6 (Project No. 800-451). 

2. PROJECT COORDINATION

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the 
District’s Project Manager, Rollie Arbolante. 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

See Attachment “A” to Task Order No. 1 

Page 57 of 170



Newark Backyard Sewer Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 (Project 
No. 800-436) and the Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs Project – 
Phase 6 (Project No. 800-451)
Task Order No. 1 
Page 2

4. DELIVERABLES

The Covello Group shall provide the District with all formal inspection
reports, meeting minutes, photographs, video, and conversation 
memoranda produced by their project personnel.

5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the 
Agreement.  Compensation shall be on an hourly basis with a Not to 
Exceed amount of $191,640.  The hourly rates for are presented in 
Attachment B in accordance with current Covello Rates.

6. TIME OF COMPLETION

All work defined in this Task Order shall be complete in 180 calendar days 
after the execution of this Task Order and subject to the conditions of 
Article 3 of this Agreement.  A summary of the anticipated schedule of 
work is shown in Exhibit B.

7. KEY PERSONNEL

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 1 are as follows:

Role Key Person to be Assigned
Project Manager Michael Jaeger
Field Engineer Sala McGuire
Inspector Steve Brandt

Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of 
the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task 
Order No. 1 as of ________________, 2015 and therewith incorporate it as part 
of the Agreement.

Page 58 of 170



Newark Backyard Sewer Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 (Project 
No. 800-436) and the Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs Project – 
Phase 6 (Project No. 800-451)
Task Order No. 1 
Page 3

DISTRICT ENGINEER

Union Sanitary District The Covello Group

By: ________________________  By:    

Name: Paul  R. Eldredge, P.E.  Name: Michael K. Jaeger, P.E.

Title: District Engineer/General Manager Title: Vice President, Lic. #C55691

Page 59 of 170



EXHIBIT   A

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NEWARK BACKYARD SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION – PHASE 2 PROJECT
AND 

MISCELLANEOUS SANITARY SEWER SPOT REPAIRS – PHASE 6 PROJECT

THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. – SCOPE OF WORK  

I. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE. 

1. Covello shall review and become completely knowledgeable about the project 
plans and specifications.  

2. Covello shall conduct pre-construction surveys, with the Contractor, District, 
Cities, and other agencies of all existing public and private improvements 
along the project alignment.  Covello shall use video, photos and notes as 
appropriate. 

II. CONSTRUCTION PHASE

NOTE:  Since Covello will only be providing Part-Time, Field Engineering 
assistance some of the administrative tasks may need to be shared with 
the District Engineering staff depending on the quantity of items requiring 
our attention.

1. Construction Administration
a. Project Coordination: Covello shall act as the project coordinator and the 

point of contact for all communications with the Contractor.  Covello shall
coordinate the activities of the District, Design Consultant (DC) and 
Contractor.

b. Document Tracking System: Covello shall utilize the District’s Projectmates
system for tracking all correspondence and documents on the project.

c. Construction Administration Services: Covello shall provide administrative 
and management services on a part-time basis.  Covello shall receive all 
correspondence from the Contractor and shall address all inquiries from the 
Contractor and all construction related correspondence.  The DC will be 
responsible for providing any design input. 

2. Meetings
a. Covello shall prepare the agenda for the weekly progress meetings and other 

construction meetings required during the project.
b. Covello shall facilitate and prepare the record of discussions for the weekly 

progress and other construction meetings.
c. Covello shall distribute, through Projectmates, the record of discussions from 

weekly progress meetings and other meetings as required.

Page 1 of 8 Page 60 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

3. Submittals
a. Covello shall implement and coordinate the submittal processing using the

District’s document control system, 
b. Covello shall receive the submittals from the Contractor and check for 

general conformity with the Contract requirements.  If obvious deficiencies 
are apparent in the submittal, Covello shall send the submittal back to the 
Contractor for correction.

c. Covello shall route the submittal to the DC for review and shall route the 
reviewed submittal back to the Contractor.  Covello shall review comments 
on submittals to determine if additional follow-up with the Contractor is
warranted and to identify prospective scope changes.

d. Covello shall maintain a log and tracking system (Projectmates) for 
submittals.  Covello shall track the status of submittal review with the DC and 
the status of shop drawing resubmittals with the Contractor.

e. The DC will review all design related submittals and submittals related to
temporary facilities for compliance with the contract documents. 

4. Clarification Processing
a. Covello shall implement and coordinate the system for processing 

clarifications (Projectmates). 
b. Covello shall receive all requests for information (RFIs) from the Contractor 

and determine if the request is a valid RFI; if not, Covello shall return the RFI 
to the Contractor with an appropriate response, if required. 

c. Covello shall provide a response to the Contractor for any administrative and 
general RFIs.

d. Covello shall route all other RFIs to the DC at their main office.
e. The DC will review RFIs and provide design response.
f. Covello shall review the DC’s response, verify acceptability of response and 

transmit the Clarification Response to the Contractor. If the response 
materially affects the design, it will be reviewed with the District and/or the 
DC, as necessary, to verify that it is required. If it is required, Covello shall
issue a change request to the Contractor. 

g. Covello shall maintain a system for logging and tracking RFIs.  Covello shall
track the status of RFI review with the DC.

h. The DC will prepare Design Clarifications where design issues are identified 
by Covello, the DC, or the District.  Covello shall prepare the Clarification 
Letter for transmittal to the Contractor of the DC’s Design Clarification and 
other clarifications.

5. Change Order Preparation, Negotiation & Processing
a. Covello shall review Contractor’s requests for Change Orders against 

contract requirements and make recommendations to the District regarding 
its appropriateness.

b. The DC will prepare design details for change requests.
c. Covello shall prepare and issue the change request to the Contractor with 

the appropriate design documents.

Page 2 of 8 Page 61 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

d. Covello shall prepare an independent cost estimate and/or verify the 
acceptability of the Contractor’s cost proposal for each change request.  The 
DC’s input may be requested for specific equipment and material costs.

e. In the event the Contractor encounters a time sensitive problem where time 
is not available to negotiate a change order, Covello shall issue a field order,
with a not-to-exceed amount of $2,500.  All work done under a field order will 
be completed on a time and material basis. In general, when time allows, 
Covello shall advise the District of the need to issue afield order and the 
District will execute the field order.   

f. Covello shall prepare change orders for execution by the District and 
Contractor.

g. Covello shall implement and maintain a system for logging and tracking 
changes.

h. Covello shall establish and maintain Issues Files.  The issue files shall
compile all data related to specific items that arise that may have cost or time 
impacts.

6. Progress Payment
a. Covello shall review the initial cost breakdown prepared by the Contractor.  

Covello shall review and process the progress payment requests as required 
in the Contract Documents and by the California Public Contract Code.

b. Covello shall verify the quantity and acceptability of stored materials.
c. Covello shall verify the Contractor’s construction progress as it relates to the 

progress billing procedure.
d. Covello shall perform the administration, preparation and processing of the 

monthly progress payments.
e. Covello shall prepare the summary cover sheet for the progress payments 

which will be executed by Covello, the Contractor, and the District. 
f. When and if requested by the District, State or other agency or public inquiry, 

Covello shall collect but not review the certified payroll from the Contractor.

7. Scheduling
a. Covello shall review and work with the Contractor in the development of the 

initial Baseline schedule.  Covello shall review and work with the Contractor 
in their review and preparation of the schedule updates.  Covello shall
provide written comments to the Contractor on the Baseline and update 
schedules.

8. Field Quality Control
a. Covello shall provide daytime (7am to 6pm) field inspection/observation 

services to monitor compliance with the Contract Documents.
b. Covello shall immediately report nonconformance and construction 

deficiencies to the Contractor and to the District.  Covello shall work with the 
Contractor to develop and implement appropriate corrective actions.   

c. Covello shall prepare a daily inspection report documenting field activities, 
field crews, Contractor equipment, and field problems.

Page 3 of 8 Page 62 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

d. Covello shall maintain a Corrective Work Item List.  The list shall provide a 
current inventory of required corrections to aid in timely completion of such 
items.

e. Covello shall provide photographic and video documentation of the project 
prior to construction.  Covello shall provide and maintain photographs of field 
activities for status monitoring of the project.

f. Covello shall receive, investigate, and make recommendations to the 
District on resolution of property owner’s and resident’s complaints.

g. Covello shall monitor the record documents on a monthly basis to determine 
if they are being maintained by the Contractor.

h. Covello shall manage and coordinate the material testing and special 
inspections specified in the Contract Documents to be furnished by the 
District for the Project. District to provide Covello copies of contract 
information for use during construction.
1. Covello shall schedule and coordinate the specialty inspections and 

material testing.
2. Covello shall have oversight responsibility for the specialty inspections

and testing services.
i. Covello will conduct final inspection, prepare punchlists, and review the 

Contractor's as-built drawings for accuracy and completeness. 
j. No provision has been included in the scope of work or budget for 

observation, testing and handling of hazardous material. 

9. Means and Methods of Construction
  a.   Covello shall not have responsibility for directing the means and methods of 

construction. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means and 
methods of construction.

10.  Safety
a. Covello shall comply with appropriate regulatory, project and District

regulations regarding necessary safety equipment or procedures used during 
performance of Covello’s work and shall take necessary precautions for safe 
operation of Covello’s work, and the protection of Covello’s personnel from 
injury and damage from such work.  

Neither the professional activities of Covello, nor the presence of Covello’s 
employees or sub-consultants at the construction/project site, shall relieve 
the Contractor and any other entity of their obligations, duties and 
responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, 
sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for performing, 
superintending, or coordinating their work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, District regulations, and any health or safety precautions 
required by any regulatory agencies.  Covello and its personnel have no 
authority to exercise any control over any Contractor or other entity or their 
employees in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions.

Page 4 of 8 Page 63 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

Covello shall follow the District’s confined space procedures for entry into 
any existing District confined spaces.

b. Covello has no authority to exercise control over any construction contractor 
in connection with their work or health or safety programs and precautions. 
Except to protect Covello’s own personnel and except as may be expressly 
required elsewhere in the scope of services, Covello has no duty to inspect, 
observe, correct, or report on health or safety deficiencies of the construction 
contractor. If Covello becomes aware of serious safety deficiencies not 
addressed by Contractor, Covello shall notify District. 

c. Observation of Safety and Safe Practices.

In concert with and notwithstanding Covello’s other services under this Task 
Order, Covello shall perform the following activities as and when necessary.

1. Prior to commencement of construction, Covello shall meet with the 
District to identify situations that both agree could present an 
immediate danger to personnel on the project site and/or the adjacent 
population. These situations will be defined based upon the District's 
and Covello's experience. Guidelines for independent action by 
Covello regarding such situations and notification of appropriate 
District personnel will be discussed. The guidelines for action and 
notification procedures, including the names and telephone numbers 
of the District personnel, in order of precedence, shall be confirmed in 
writing.

2. The Contractor is fully responsible for safety at the construction site. 
Without in any way diminishing, or assuming, Contractor's 
responsibilities for safety, if Covello, in the normal conduct of work,
becomes aware of a situation that it believes presents an imminent 
danger of serious harm to personnel on the site and/or to the adjacent 
population, Covello is authorized to direct the Contractor as necessary 
to remove the affected personnel from the immediate danger or to 
shut down the project or portions of the project. Regardless of whether 
Covello directs the Contractor to take action, Covello shall 
immediately notify the District's personnel of the observed situation 
and of actions taken by Covello, in accordance with the previously 
developed guidelines.

3. Covello shall confirm by inspection that the Contractor has posted its 
safety program at locations identified in the specifications and required 
by regulations.

4. When requested by the District, Covello shall communicate the 
District's concerns and requests relating to safety to the Contractor's 
Safety Officer.

5. Covello shall provide documentation in its possession to the District of 
accidents Covello has observed when they occur. Such 
documentation may include copies of daily inspection reports, 
photographs, and memoranda describing the accident.

Page 5 of 8 Page 64 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

6. Covello shall inform the District when Covello becomes aware of 
suspected safety violations. Such communication to the District shall 
occur as soon as reasonably practicable after Covello becomes aware 
of suspected safety violations.

Covello shall determine whether the Contractor is conducting safety training 
on site by obtaining Contractor's safety training schedule for the project and, 
when practical, note whether that training is conducted. Observed variances 
from the Contractor’s schedule shall be communicated to the District.

11.Testing  & Training  
a. The scope and budget do not include Covello’s participation in factory 

witness testing.
b. Covello shall coordinate training requirements and activities.
c. Covello shall provide oversight and administration of testing and training. 

12.Corrective Work Item List
a. Covello shall prepare the Corrective Work Item list with input from the District 

and DC.
b. Covello shall confirm that the items identified in the Corrective Work Item list 

are completed in preparation for issuance of the Substantial Completion 
Certificate.

c. Covello shall prepare the Substantial Completion Certificate for execution by 
the District and Contractor when the Corrective Work Items are completed to 
the District’s and Covello’s satisfaction.

13.Record Document Management
a. Covello shall maintain a set of contract drawings on the project site for the 

duration of the project, to properly record the as-built conditions as they 
occur.

b. This set of Record Documents will be used as a comparison with the 
Contractor’s record documents in order to confirm the accuracy of the 
Contractors information. This comparison will take place monthly with each 
progress payment.

c. Once the project reaches final completion, the Record Document set from 
both the Covello Group and the Contractor will be forwarded to the Designer 
for use to create a set of As-Built drawings for the District.  

d. Covello shall review a DRAFT version of the As-Built drawings in comparison 
to our Record set to confirm that all items are captured properly.  Any 
comments shall be forwarded to the Designer to correct for the FINAL 
version.

14.Project Management Assistance by Covello’s Senior Staff
a. Attend project meetings to facilitate coordination, communication and 

resolution of project issues that have stalled progress of the work or become 
very contentious.

Page 6 of 8 Page 65 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

b. Provide oversight for field CM and inspection staff to assist with problem 
resolution that have stalled or become contentious.

c. Assist District staff with any other service requested that is beyond the scope 
of standard Project Management services and not described in any of the 
items above.

III. CLOSE OUT PERIOD

1. Final Inspection and Punchlist
  a. Final Inspection
   1. Covello shall have primary responsibility for conducting the final 

inspection.
   2. The District will participate and provide input on the final inspection.
   3. DC will provide design input on final inspection items if determined 

necessary by the District. 
   4. Covello shall have oversight and final review responsibility for the final 

inspection.
  b. Covello shall prepare the list of outstanding deficiencies.  
  c. Covello shall prepare and issue the punchlist(s) from the list of deficiencies.

d. Covello shall have primary responsibility for verifying that punchlist work is 
complete. 

2. Warranty Coordination
  a. Covello shall maintain a warranty file.

b. Coordination of warranty work after the Contract Period is not included in 
this Scope of Work or budget.  If the District determines at a later date that 
it desires Covello to provide this service, an amendment is issued for 
additional budget and Covello shall coordinate warranty work with the 
District and Contractor during the warranty period.

3. Project Closeout:
a. Covello shall prepare necessary District documentation recommending 

acceptance of the completed work by the Board.
b. Covello shall turnover project documentation to the District in an orderly 

manner.  Covello shall retain all issue files at the end of the project.  The 
District shall have the right to request review and/or copies of the issue files.

c. Covello shall have full and complete access available to all files created by 
Covello during the Project for up to ten (10) years after the completion of the 
Project.  Such access shall include the right to copy any and/or all such files 
at Covello’s expense.

4. Dispute Resolution:
a. Resolution, when possible, of routine disagreements through the normal 

efforts of the day-to-day project site staff will be performed.

Page 7 of 8 Page 66 of 170



Union Sanitary District – Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation – Phase 2 Project and
Miscellaneous Sanitary Sewer Spot Repairs – Phase 6 Project - The Covello Group Scope of Work

b. Dispute resolution services using third parties or special processes (e.g. 
Mediation, Arbitration, Mini-Trials, Dispute Consultants), or those requiring 
extraordinary efforts by Covello are not included in this Scope of Work.  If 
such non-routine dispute resolution services are required, either an 
amendment or a separate task order will be executed.  

IV. OPTIONAL SERVICES

1. Night Work Field Quality Control
a. The contract does not require night work.  Any night work inspection or 

construction management is outside this scope of work.  

Page 8 of 8 Page 67 of 170



EX
H

IB
IT

   
B

H
ou

rs
R

at
e

A
m

ou
nt

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

t.
O

ct
.

N
ov

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
M

. J
ae

ge
r (

A
llo

w
an

ce
)

10
,0

00
$

   
 

O
ffi

ce
 E

ng
in

ee
r

S
. M

cG
ui

re
28

0
11

2
$

   
31

,3
60

$
   

 
80

   
   

  
80

   
   

  
80

   
   

  
20

   
   

  
20

   
   

  
In

sp
ec

to
r

S
. B

ra
nd

t
1,

04
0

13
7

$
   

14
2,

48
0

$
  

16
0

   
   

16
0

   
   

16
0

   
   

16
0

   
   

16
0

   
   

16
0

   
   

80
   

   
  

In
sp

ec
to

r (
O

T)
S

. B
ra

nd
t

14
0

13
7

$
   

19
,1

80
$

   
 

40
   

   
  

40
   

   
  

40
   

   
  

20
   

   
  

C
M

 S
ub

to
ta

l
18

3,
84

0
$ 

  

O
th

er
 D

ire
ct

 C
os

ts
In

sp
ec

to
r V

eh
ic

le
 

6.
5

$1
,2

00
7,

80
0

$
   

   
1

1
1

1
1

1
0.

5

O
D

C
 S

ub
to

ta
l

7,
80

0
$ 

   
   

TO
TA

L
1,

46
7

   
   

  
19

1,
64

0
$

  
24

1
   

   
28

1
   

   
28

1
   

   
22

1
   

   
20

1
   

   
16

1
   

   
81

   
   

  

Ba
se

 C
on

tra
ct

 %
 =

 
7.

67
%

N
ot

es
 &

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t E
st

im
at

e 
(A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e)

:
$2

,5
00

,0
00

N
TP

:
5/

1/
20

15
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pe
rio

d 
(C

D
s)

:
18

0
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n:

10
/2

8/
20

15

C
lo

se
ou

t:
4 

w
ee

ks

1.
  C

ov
el

lo
's

 ra
te

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

l o
ffi

ce
 e

xp
en

se
s 

fo
r h

om
e 

of
fic

e 
te

le
ph

on
e,

 c
om

pu
te

rs
, i

n-
ho

us
e 

re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
ve

l i
n 

th
e 

B
ay

 A
re

a 
in

 p
er

so
na

l v
eh

ic
le

s.

2.
  T

he
 B

ud
ge

t i
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
n 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 N

TP
 o

f M
ay

 1
, 2

01
5.

 
3.

  T
he

 B
ud

ge
t c

on
si

de
rs

 o
ur

 in
sp

ec
to

r u
si

ng
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
jo

b 
tra

ile
r o

n 
th

e 
tre

at
m

en
t p

la
nt

 s
ite

.  
N

o 
ot

he
r o

ffi
ce

 lo
ca

tio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d.
4.

  T
he

 B
ud

ge
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

so
m

e 
O

T 
ho

ur
s 

du
e 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

un
ce

rta
in

ty
 o

n 
tw

o 
pr

oj
ec

ts
.  

If 
O

T 
do

es
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 it
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
bi

lle
d.

U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

N
ew

ar
k 

B
ac

ky
ar

d 
SS

 R
el

oc
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t P

ha
se

 2
 &

 M
is

c.
 S

S 
Sp

ot
 R

ep
ai

rs
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

ha
se

 6
Th

e 
C

ov
el

lo
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. -
 S

ta
ff 

Ef
fo

rt
 a

nd
 B

ud
ge

t E
st

im
at

e 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
Ap

ril
 1

6,
 2

01
5

B
ud

ge
t

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
C

lo
se

 O
ut

P
ag

e 
68

 o
f 1

70



Fo
r 

U
S

D
 u

se
 o

n
ly

P
H

A
S

E
3

P
H

A
S

E
2

P
H

A
S

E
1



Si
te

1:
Al

va
ra

do
N

ile
sR

d.

Si
te

2:
Al

ic
e

W
ay

Si
te

3:
Pa

ci
fic

St
.

Si
te

5:
Eg

ge
rs

Dr
.

Si
te

4:
Pe

ra
lta

Bl
vd

.

Si
te

6:
Bl

ac
ow

Rd
.

P
ag

e 
70

 o
f 1

70



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 20, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Thomas Lam, Associate Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 – Meeting of April 27, 2015
Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with 
West Yost Associates for Providing Design Services for the Plant 
Facilities Improvements Project

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 
2 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $318,074 for providing design services for 
the Plant Facilities Improvements Project. 

Background

In the past few years, District’s maintenance and operation staff have found that various 
equipment and facilities within the plant and Newark Pump Station need to be 
rehabilitated, replaced, or modified in order to improve the plant and pump station’s 
operation and maintenance. The scope of work or the cost for each improvement was 
not extensive enough to warrant its own standalone construction project. Therefore, 
these improvements are combined into two larger construction projects to allow for 
more favorable bids.

On November 13, 2014, the General Manager executed an Agreement and Task Order 
No. 1 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $55,567 for the Project preliminary 
design. Due to the limited budget, not all the identified improvements could be included 
in the project. Task Order No. 1 developed a preliminary construction cost estimate 
which allowed staff to evaluate and prioritize the improvements and determine which 
ones to include in the project.

Page 71 of 170



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Page 2 

The preliminary design was completed and the following improvements were selected to 
be in the Plant Facilities Improvements Project and are shown in the attached Figure 1.  

1. Repair of the lining in the 60-inch primary effluent pipe between the primary 
clarifiers and Lift Station No. 1.

2. Installation of a jib crane on the roof of the Degritter Building.
3. Installation of safety hand railing on the roof of the Degritter Building.
4. Relocation of the concrete island at the front vehicle gate to provide better 

access for large trucks.
5. Installation of permanent groundwater dewatering pumps around Primary 

Clarifiers Nos. 1-4 to reduce uplift forces exerted on out-of-service tanks.
6. Re-coating of the structural steel beams located at the Solar Carport facility.
7. Replacement of one of the two bar screens at the Headworks Building.
8. Installation of permanent polymer solution piping from the polymer preparation 

facilities in the GBT building to the effluent channel of the aeration basins.
9. Miscellaneous concrete repairs (surge towers, chlorine contact tank walkway, 

flow meter vault, Newark Pump Station wall)
10.Replacement of digester sludge heat exchanger No. 3 and No. 6.
11.Replacement of four sodium hypochlorite tanks at the Odor Control Building

(OCB) and one ferrous chloride tank at the Newark Pump Station.
12.Replacement of the existing PVC piping in the sodium hypochlorite tank 

enclosures with high density polyethylene piping.
13.Replacement of the OCB sodium hypochlorite distribution manifold system

Staff decided to combine the last three improvements into the new Sodium Hypochlorite 
Tanks and Piping Replacement Project. The improvements are similar in scope and the 
District may benefit in more competitive bids from contractors who specialize in this type 
of work. The last three improvements will have a separate set of plans and 
specifications and will be bid as a stand-alone construction project.

Task Order No. 2

The scope of services for Task Order No. 2 includes project management, detailed 
design including preparation of contract documents, and bid period services for the 
Plant Facilities Improvements Project and the Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project. The scope also includes supplemental pre-design engineering to 
review the proposed piping layout within the Odor Control Building with the plant staff to 
address their operational and maintenance needs.

The fees for the scope of services are summarized as follows:

Page 72 of 170



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Page 3 

Task Description of Work Fee

1 Project Management for both Projects $27,134
2 Supplemental Pre-design Engineering – Sodium 

Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement $7,168

3 Contract Documents – Plant Facilities Improvements $130,418
4 Contract Documents – Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and 

Piping Replacement $127,172

5 Bid Period Services – Plant Facilities Improvements $14,309
6 Bid Period Services – Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and 

Piping Replacement $11,873

Task Order No. 2 Total Not-to-Exceed Fee $318,074

The design fee for the Plant Facilities Improvements Project is just under 16% of the 
preliminary construction estimate of approximately $2 million. For a project of this
scope and size, design fees are typically between 10% and 15% of the construction 
estimate. However, due to the nature and wide variety of scope items, staff believes the 
design fees to be fair.

As a comparison, the final design fee of the 2001 Plant Mechanical Improvements 
Project was $558,000, which was 14.3% of the final construction cost of $3,895,000.
The 2001 project was very similar to the two current projects as it had multiple 
mechanical, electrical, piping, and underground improvements throughout the plant.

The designs of both projects are scheduled for completion in Fall 2015.  Staff 
anticipates construction of both projects to begin in early 2016. 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 
2 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $318,074 for providing design services for 
the Plant Facilities Improvements Project. 

PRE/SEG/RC/TL:ks

Attachments: Figure 1
Task Order No. 2 

Page 73 of 170



SO
LA

R
 

C
A

R
PO

R
T

C
B

2
C

B
3

C
B

4

Fi
el

d 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
B

ld
g

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

B
ld

g

W
A

S 
Th

ic
ke

ne
r 

B
ld

g
D

eg
rit

te
r 

B
ld

g

EB
D

A
 P

S

S
ec

on
da

ry
 C

la
ri

fie
rs

5 
- 6

C
ov

er
ed

 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
St

or
ag

e

C
on

tr
ol

 B
ld

g

C
O

G
EN

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

nt
rif

ug
e 

B
ld

g

C
hl

or
in

e 
C

on
ta

ct
 

Ta
nk

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

s
5 

- 7

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Sh

op

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

s
1 

- 4

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
C

la
ri

fie
rs

1 
- 4

er
s

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
6

Pr
i

D
ig

 4

Pr
i 

D
ig

 5

er
s

H
/M

#4

Li
ft

 S
ta

tio
n 

#1

Li
ft 

St
at

io
n 

#2

P
ai

nt
 

S
ho

p
Pr

i 
D

ig
 3

Pr
i 

D
ig

 2
Pr

i 
D

ig
 1

Th
ic

k 
2

Th
ic

k 
4

Th
ic

k 
1

Th
ic

k 
3

G
en

er
at

or
 

B
ld

g 
#3

H
/M

#3

H
/M

#1

G
en

er
at

or
 

B
ld

g 
#1

A
lv

ar
ad

o 
PS

Se
c 

D
ig

 2

Se
c 

D
ig

 1
Th

ic
ke

ne
r 

C
on

to
l B

ld
g

H
/M #2

Su
bs

ta
tio

n 
#2

Si
te

 W
as

te
 

PS
Su

bs
ta

tio
n 

#1

81 1

54

53

66

72

77

65

62 74

55 56
50

82

70

68

83
84

86

80

69
90 78

63

73
76

64

58



4/21/2015 Page 1 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

PLANT FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

(USD Project No. 800-448) 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 
TO

AGREEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 13, 2014
BETWEEN UNION SANITARY DISTRICT AND 

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES FOR  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

_________________________________________

1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of Task Order No. 2 is to authorize the final design for the rehabilitation, 
replacement, and/or modification of a number of facilities located throughout the District’s 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant and at the District’s Irvington and Newark Pump Stations. 
These improvements are described in the Technical Memorandum titled “Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project” and are as follows: 

1. Repair of the lining in the 60-inch primary effluent pipe between the primary clarifiers 
and Lift Station No. 1. This project will clean the interior surface and then apply a 
cementitous calcium aluminate coating to the 60 inch primary effluent pipe. 

2. Installation of jib cranes and manual chain hoists at the two access hatches on the roof of 
the Degritter Building. 

3. Installation of safety handrailing on a portion of the roof of the Degritter Building that
requires frequent access by staff for maintenance activities.

4. Relocation of the concrete island at the front vehicle gate to provide better access for 
large trucks and the provision of a security station and camera. 

5. Installation of two permanent groundwater dewatering pumps and piping around Primary 
Clarifiers Nos. 1-4 to reduce uplift forces exerted on out-of-service tanks. All piping and 
electrical conduit not attached to the primary clarifier structure will be routed below 
grade. 

6. Replacement of four sodium hypochlorite tanks at the Odor Control Building and one 
ferrous chloride tank at the Newark Pump Station. The suitability of the existing tank 
pad for the accommodation of a larger capacity storage tank will be evaluated and any 
structural modifications will be incorporated if it is found to be desirable. 

7. Replace the existing PVC piping with HDPE piping at the Odor Control Building and 
Maintenance Shop sodium hypochlorite tank enclosures. 

8. Replace the existing PVC piping with HDPE piping for the sodium hypochlorite 
distribution manifold system located in the Odor Control Building. The new piping shall

Page 75 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 2 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

be arranged to make the piping and associated equipment more accessible for 
maintenance and more intuitive to the operators. 

9. Re-coating of a portion of the structural steel beams located at the Solar Carport facility 
that are exhibiting coating failures. 

10. Replace one of the two 3/4-inch size bar screens with a smaller 3/8-inch size bar screen at 
the Headworks Building to increase the amount of rag removal. The scope of work will 
be consistent with a recently obtained proposal from the manufacturer for the retrofitting 
of the screen. 

11. Install permanent polymer solution piping from the polymer preparation facilities in the
GBT building to the effluent channel of the aeration 

12. Locate and specify repairs to damaged concrete located at the following locations: surge 
tower stairs at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Irvington and Newark 
Pump Stations; chlorine contact tank deck area; Degritter Building structure; and the 
primary effluent meter vault. 

13. Replace in kind, two existing sludge heat exchangers, No. 3 and No.6. 

The project elements described above will be incorporated into two separate sets of bidding and 
contract documents as described in the SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The task numbers in this Scope of Services relate directly to the costs presented in Item 4, Payment 
to the Engineer, and the schedule presented in Item 5, Time of Completion. Deliverables to be 
received by Union Sanitary District (District) are described under each task. Optional tasks shown 
shall not be performed without authorization from the District. 

Engineer shall review the District’s current design standards and incorporate the pertinent standards 
in the Contract Documents. 

Task 1.  Project Management 

This task will include project management activities, including day-to-day administration, progress 
meetings, and technical reviews. 

Subtask 1.1—Project Administration. Monitor progress of individual tasks and coordinate 
completion of work products.  Monitor task budgets and project schedule.  Schedule changes, if 
required, will be provided. Prepare monthly invoices and summary description of work performed 
during the month. 

Subtask 1.2—Progress Meetings. Attend a project kick-off meeting and up to two progress 
meetings (workshops during the design phase) with District staff to discuss and review progress and 
significant action items.  Engineer will prepare and submit meeting agendas and minutes. 

Subtask 1.3—Technical Reviews. Technical reviews will be conducted by the Principal-in-
Charge, Project Manager, and a senior staff member not directly involved in the project. 

Page 76 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 3 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

Task 2. Supplemental Predesign Engineering 

Develop, in conjunction with input from plant staff, functional schematic piping diagrams to 
describe the operational alternatives and redundancy provisions desired for the chemical feed 
pumping system located in the Odor Control Building. 

Task 3. Contract Document Preparation – Plant Facilities Improvements Project 

This task will prepare contract documents, plans, and specifications suitable for bidding for the 
project elements 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 described in Item 1 Purpose.

Subtask 3.1—50 Percent Design Submittal. The first submittal following the authorization to 
proceed with final design will be the complete package of bidding documents, including all front 
end documents, technical specifications of major sections, and drawings for review by district 
personnel. An updated cost estimate for the construction of the project will also be submitted. 
The information will be presented at a 50 Percent Design Submittal workshop.  

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 
 Draft table of contents, front end documents, and technical specifications of major items. 

[2 hard copies and PDF file] 
 Preliminary cover sheet, general sheets, typical details, and plan view drawings 

developed to a 50% completion level. [5 hard copies (1/2 size)  and PDF file] 
 Workshop agendas and minutes. 
 An updated 50 % construction cost estimate. 
 Written responses to all comments made by District staff to design reviews. 

Subtask 3.2—90 Percent Design Submittal. Following receipt of District comments on the 
50 Percent Design submittal, the design will be further developed. The 90 Percent Design 
Submittal will consist of the complete package of bidding documents, including all front end 
documents, technical specifications, and drawings for review by district personnel. An updated 
cost estimate for the construction of the project will also be submitted. The information will be 
presented at a 90 Percent Design Submittal workshop.  

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 
 Complete front end documents, technical specifications, and appendices. [2 hard copies 

and PDF file] 
 Drawings developed to a 90% completion level. [5 hard copies (1/2 size) and PDF file] 
 Workshop agendas and minutes. 
 An updated construction cost estimate. 
 Written responses to all comments made by District staff to design reviews. 

Subtask 3.3—Final Design Submittal. Following receipt of comments on the 90 Percent 
Design Submittal package, Engineer will revise and finalize, and sign the documents for use in 
soliciting competitive construction bids for the project 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 
 Final stamped and signed front end documents and technical specifications. [1 hard copy 

and PDF file] 
 Final stamped and signed drawings. [1 hard copy (1/2 size) and PDF file] 

Page 77 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 4 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

 CAD files of final drawings. 
 Final cost estimate. 

Task 4. Contract Document Preparation – Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project 

This task will prepare contract documents, plans, and specifications suitable for bidding for the 
project elements, 6, 7, and 8 described in Item 1 Purpose: 

Subtask 4.1—50 Percent Design Submittal. The first submittal following the authorization to 
proceed with final design will be the complete package of bidding documents, including all front 
end documents, technical specifications of major sections, and drawings for review by district 
personnel. An updated cost estimate for the construction of the project will also be submitted. 
The information will be presented at a 50 Percent Design Submittal workshop. The workshop for 
the Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement and the Plant Facilities Improvement 
Project will take place at the same time. 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 
 Draft table of contents, front end documents, and technical specifications of major items. 

[2 hard copies and PDF file] 
 Preliminary cover sheet, general sheets, typical details, and plan view drawings 

developed to a 50% completion level. [5 hard copies (1/2 size)  and PDF file] 
 Workshop agendas and minutes. 
 An updated 50 % construction cost estimate. 
 Written responses to all comments made by District staff to design reviews. 

Subtask 4.2—90 Percent Design Submittal. Following receipt of District comments on the 
50 Percent Design submittal, the design will be further developed. The 90 Percent Design 
Submittal will consist of the complete package of bidding documents, including all front end 
documents, technical specifications, and drawings for review by district personnel. An updated 
cost estimate for the construction of the project will also be submitted. The information will be 
presented at a 90 Percent Design Submittal workshop. The workshop for the Sodium 
Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement and the Plant Facilities Improvement Project will 
take place at the same time. 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 
 Complete front end documents, technical specifications, and appendices. [2 hard copies 

and PDF file] 
 Drawings developed to a 90% completion level. [5 hard copies (1/2 size) and PDF file] 
 Workshop agendas and minutes. 
 An updated construction cost estimate. 
 Written responses to all comments made by District staff to design reviews. 

Subtask 4.3—Final Design Submittal. Following receipt of comments on the 90 Percent 
Design Submittal package, Engineer will revise and finalize, and sign the documents for use in 
soliciting competitive construction bids for the project 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 

Page 78 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 5 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

 Final stamped and signed front end documents and technical specifications. [1 hard copy 
and PDF file] 

 Final stamped and signed drawings. [1 hard copy (1/2 size) and PDF file] 
 CAD files of final drawings. 
 Final cost estimate. 

Task 5. Bid Period Services – Plant Facilities Improvements 

The following services will be performed under this task during the bidding of the Plant 
Facilities Improvements Project 

1. Attendance at a pre-bid meeting for each project. 
2. Review of comments and/or information requests from bidders and preparation of addenda 

documentation, if required. 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 

 Written addenda items for issuance during the bidding of the work. 
 Prebid meeting minutes, email documentation of phone conversations with bidders 

Task 6. Bid Period Services – Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement 

The following services will be performed under this task during the bidding of the Sodium 
Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement Project 

1. Attendance at a pre-bid meeting for each project. 
2. Review of comments and/or information requests from bidders and preparation of addenda 

documentation, if required. 

Project deliverables for this task are listed below: 

 Written addenda items for issuance during the bidding of the work. 
 Prebid meeting minutes, email documentation of phone conversations with bidders 

3. PROJECT COORDINATION 

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s Project Manager, 
Thomas Lam.

4. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 

Compensation shall be on a time and materials cost basis for services provided under Article 2 of 
this Agreement in accordance with the Billing Rate Schedule contained in Exhibit A (updated 
annually) except that subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%, outside services will be 
billed at actual cost, and mileage will be billed at prevailing IRS standard mileage rate.  The 
billing rate schedule is generally comparable to a labor multiplier of approximately 3.22. 

Page 79 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 6 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

The estimated costs for Tasks 1 through 6 are presented in Exhibit B.  Total charges to the District 
shall not exceed $318,074. 

The following table summarizes all task orders and amendments, if any, including those 
previously executed under the Agreement, ending with this Task Order: 

Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed 
Amount

Board 
Authorization 

Required? (Yes/No)

District Staff 
Approval

Task Order No. 1 $55,567 No Paul Eldredge
Task Order No. 2 $318,074 Yes Paul Eldredge

Total $373,641

5. TIME OF COMPLETION 

The estimated time of completion is as follows: 

Milestone Schedule
Request for detailed background 
information

1 week from authorization to proceed

Kickoff meeting and site visit 1 week from receipt of background 
information

50% Design Submittal 6 weeks following kickoff meeting
90% Design Submittal 4 weeks following receipt of District 

comments on the 50% Design Submittal
Final Design Submittal 3 weeks following receipt of District 

comments on the 90% Design Submittal

6. KEY PERSONNEL 

Key engineering personnel or subconsultants assigned to Task Order No. 2 are as follows: 

Role Personnel/Subconsultant
Principal-in-Charge

Project Manager/Engineer
John D. Goodwin

Jim Waters
Project Engineers

Structural Engineer
Gary Rice, Matt Lemmon
Thomas Ewert (Complete 

Project Solutions
Electrical Engineer Todd Beecher (Beecher 

Engineering, Inc.)

Key personnel shall not change except in accordance with Article 8 of the Agreement.  

Page 80 of 170



4/21/2015 Page 7 of 7 Task Order No.2 
TO2 Facilities Improvements Final Design -Working Version.docx  Union Sanitary District 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No. 2 as of 
___________________, 2015 and therewith incorporated it as part of the Agreement. 

ENGINEER:

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES

By: _________________________________
John D. Goodwin
Vice President

DISTRICT:

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

By:  ________________________________
Paul R. Eldredge. P.E.
General Manager/District Engineer

Page 81 of 170



2015 Billing Rate Schedule
(Effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015)*

ENGINEERING

Position
Labor Charges

(dollars per hour)
Principal/Vice President 253
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager II 242
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager I 232
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 224
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 211
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 198
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 189
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 179
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 167
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 157
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 136
Senior GIS Analyst 184
GIS Analyst 174
CAD Supervisor 146
Senior CAD Designer 127
CAD Designer 113
Engineering Aide 76 
Technical Specialist IV 143
Technical Specialist III 127
Technical Specialist II 110
Technical Specialist I 92
Administrative IV 116
Administrative III 105
Administrative II 87 
Administrative I 69 

Hourly rates include Technology and Communication charges such as general and 
CAD computer, software, telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, 
miscellaneous supplies, and other incidental project expenses.

Outside Services such as vendor reproductions, prints, shipping, and major West Yost 
reproduction efforts, as well as Engineering Supplies, Travel, etc. will be billed at 
actual cost plus 15%.

Mileage will be billed at the current Federal Rate.

Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 10%.

Expert witness, research, technical review, analysis, preparation and meetings billed 
at 150% of standard hourly rates.  Expert witness testimony and depositions billed at 
200% of standard hourly rates.

A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month (an Annual Rate of 18%) on the unpaid balance 
will be added to invoice amounts if not paid within 45 days from the date of the invoice.

     
Continues on following page

*This schedule is updated annuallyPage 82 of 170

Exhibit A



2015 Billing Rate Schedule
(Effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015)*

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Position
Labor Charges

(dollars per hour)
Senior Construction Manager 244
Construction Manager IV 212
Construction Manager III 170
Construction Manager II 159
Construction Manager I 148
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 1) 165
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 2) 159
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 3) 142
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 4) 127
Apprentice Inspector 117
CM Administrative II 85
CM Administrative I 64

SURVEYING

Position
Labor Charges

(dollars per hour)
GPS, 3-Person 387
GPS, 2-Person 336
GPS, 1-Person 261
Survey Crew, 2-Person 284
Survey Crew, 1-Person 214

EQUIPMENT CHARGES

Equipment
Billing Rate

(dollars per day)
Billing Rate

(dollars per week)
DO Meter 17 83 
pH Meter 5 26 
Automatic Sampler 130 712
Transducer/Data Logger 41 206 
Hydrant Pressure Gage 12 50
Hydrant Pressure Recorder (HPR) — 206 
Hydrant Wrench 5 33 
Well Sounder 29 134 
Ultrasonic Flow Meter — 269 
Vehicle 88 445
Velocity Meter 12 65 
Water Quality Multimeter 176 964

*This schedule is updated annuallyPage 83 of 170



Pr
oj

ec
t

[G
oo

dw
in

]
[W

at
er

s]
[R

ic
e]

[L
em

m
on

]
5%

nd
 Q

A
/Q

C
2

20
22

4,
98

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

52
0

$ 
   

   
  

1,
44

0
$ 

   
   

  
3,

10
8

$ 
   

   
  

8,
09

4
$ 

   
   

  
o.

)
24

24
5,

37
6

$ 
   

   
  

1,
44

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

51
2

$ 
   

   
  

6,
88

8
$ 

   
   

  
40

40
8,

96
0

$ 
   

   
  

3,
04

0
$ 

   
   

  
3,

19
2

$ 
   

   
  

12
,1

52
$ 

   
   

2
84

0
0

0
0

86

50
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
18

,8
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

,3
22

$ 
   

   
4,

56
0

$ 
   

   
  

2,
88

0
$ 

   
   

  
7,

81
2

$ 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

  
27

,1
34

$ 
   

   

gn
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

fig
ur

at
io

n
20

12
32

7,
16

8
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
7,

16
8

$ 
   

   
  

0
20

12
0

0
0

32

   
   

   
   

4,
48

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

68
8

$ 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
16

8
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
16

8
$ 

   
   

  

Pl
an

t F
ac

ili
tie

s 

4
28

20
52

8,
22

8
$ 

   
   

  
1,

44
0

$ 
   

   
  

1,
51

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

74
0

$ 
   

   
  

8
50

40
98

15
,3

82
$ 

   
   

2,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

31
0

$ 
   

   
  

17
,6

92
$ 

   
   

8
14

0
18

0
32

8
49

,7
12

$ 
   

   
19

,5
10

$ 
   

   
18

,7
20

$ 
   

   
40

,1
42

$ 
   

   
89

,8
54

$ 
   

   
at

es
20

20
4,

48
0

$ 
   

   
  

2,
12

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

22
6

$ 
   

   
  

6,
70

6
$ 

   
   

  
18

18
4,

03
2

$ 
   

   
  

2,
28

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

39
4

$ 
   

   
  

6,
42

6
$ 

   
   

  
0

58
0

21
8

18
0

60
51

6

   
   

   
   

12
,9

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
,0

22
$ 

   
   

22
,8

60
$ 

   
   

6,
96

0
$ 

   
   

  
81

,8
34

$ 
   

   
27

,5
50

$ 
   

   
18

,7
20

$ 
   

   
48

,5
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
0,

41
8

$ 
   

 

So
di

iu
m

 
d 

Pi
pi

ng
 

4
20

20
44

6,
79

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

44
0

$ 
   

   
  

1,
51

2
$ 

   
   

  
8,

30
8

$ 
   

   
  

8
55

30
93

17
,5

92
$ 

   
   

2,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

31
0

$ 
   

   
  

19
,9

02
$ 

   
   

10
14

0
15

0
30

0
52

,6
50

$ 
   

   
15

,0
80

$ 
   

   
17

,2
80

$ 
   

   
33

,9
78

$ 
   

   
86

,6
28

$ 
   

   
at

es
20

20
4,

48
0

$ 
   

   
  

2,
12

0
$ 

   
   

  
2,

22
6

$ 
   

   
  

6,
70

6
$ 

   
   

  
18

18
4,

03
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
52

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

59
6

$ 
   

   
  

5,
62

8
$ 

   
   

  
0

60
19

5
20

15
0

50
47

5

   
   

   
   

13
,4

40
$ 

   
   

43
,6

80
$ 

   
   

3,
58

0
$ 

   
   

  
19

,0
50

$ 
   

   
5,

80
0

$ 
   

   
  

85
,5

50
$ 

   
   

22
,3

60
$ 

   
   

17
,2

80
$ 

   
   

41
,6

22
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

7,
17

2
$ 

   
 

Pl
an

t F
ac

ili
tie

s 

6
6

1,
34

4
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
1,

34
4

$ 
   

   
  

de
nd

a
4

20
8

32
6,

39
2

$ 
   

   
  

4,
64

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

62
0

$ 
   

   
  

6,
57

3
$ 

   
   

  
12

,9
65

$ 
   

   
0

10
20

0
8

0
38

   
   

   
   

2,
24

0
$ 

   
   

  
4,

48
0

$ 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

1,
01

6
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
7,

73
6

$ 
   

   
  

4,
64

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

62
0

$ 
   

   
  

6,
57

3
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  

14
,3

09
$ 

   
   

So
di

um
 

d 
Pi

pi
ng

 

6
6

1,
34

4
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

34
4

$ 
   

   
  

de
nd

a
4

20
8

32
6,

39
2

$ 
   

   
  

2,
32

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

62
0

$ 
   

   
  

4,
13

7
$ 

   
   

  
10

,5
29

$ 
   

   
0

10
20

0
8

0
38

   
   

   
   

2,
24

0
$ 

   
   

  
4,

48
0

$ 
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

1,
01

6
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
7,

73
6

$ 
   

   
  

2,
32

0
$ 

   
   

  
1,

62
0

$ 
   

   
  

4,
13

7
$ 

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
  

11
,8

73
$ 

   
   

2
24

2
24

7
23

8
34

6
11

0
1,

18
5



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 21, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of April 27, 2015
MOTION TO RESCHEDULE THE MAY 25, 2015 BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING

Recommendation

None. 

Background

The second regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in May falls on
Memorial Day.  Traditionally, the Board has rescheduled meetings that fall on holidays 
to the next business day.  The Board approved an item at the April 13, 2015, meeting 
that scheduled a public hearing to be held Tuesday, May 26, 2015.  Staff is 
recommending the Board reschedule the meeting scheduled for Monday, May 25, 
2015, to Tuesday, May 26, 2015.

  

Page 85 of 170



P
ag

e 
86

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
87

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
88

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
89

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
90

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
91

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
92

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
93

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
94

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
95

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
96

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
97

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
98

 o
f 1

70



P
ag

e 
99

 o
f 1

70



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E
General Manager/District 
Engineer 

David M. O’Hara
Attorney 

DATE: April 20, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
  Kim Truong, Administrative Specialist II 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11b. – April 27, 2015 
  Information item:  CAL-CARD QUARTERLY MERCHANT  

ACTIVITY REPORT 

Recommendation

Information Only 

Information 

The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity 
for the third quarter of FY 2015.  This covers transactions for the CAL-Card billing 
period December 23, 2014 through March 22, 2015. During this quarter, we had 
245 transactions totaling $76,775.99. 

Page 100 of 170



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

83
98

C
A

 W
A

TE
R

 E
N

V
 

51
0-

38
2-

78
00

C
A

$
6,

75
9.

74
24

$
28

1.
66

$
0.

00
0

$
6,

75
9.

74
8.

97
%

24
$

2.
04

A
S

S
N

59
99

IN
 *

FO
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

 
50

3-
50

59
53

8
O

R
6,

78
6.

28
1

6,
78

6.
28

38
.0

0
1

6,
74

8.
28

8.
96

%
2

0.
00

FI
TN

E
S

S
 L

L
82

20
R

E
LI

A
B

IL
IT

Y
86

5-
97

49
55

4
TN

4,
21

2.
00

1
4,

21
2.

00
0.

00
0

4,
21

2.
00

5.
59

%
1

0.
00

M
A

IN
TA

IN
A

B
IL

I
93

99
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

FR
E

M
O

N
T 

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

3,
24

0.
00

2
1,

62
0.

00
0.

00
0

3,
24

0.
00

4.
30

%
2

0.
00

D
E

V
 S

V
C

S
55

33
M

Y
FL

E
E

TD
E

P
TC

O
M

58
5-

37
48

82
7

N
Y

2,
79

9.
00

1
2,

79
9.

00
0.

00
0

2,
79

9.
00

3.
71

%
1

0.
00

83
98

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
91

6-
44

60
38

8
C

A
2,

70
0.

00
5

54
0.

00
0.

00
0

2,
70

0.
00

3.
58

%
5

0.
00

A
S

S
O

C
 O

F 
S

A
N

E
 

50
39

O
W

E
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

50
3-

25
59

05
5

O
R

2,
16

5.
40

4
54

1.
35

0.
00

0
2,

16
5.

40
2.

87
%

4
18

2.
14

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
E

 
50

21
B

IZ
2B

IZ
 O

N
LI

N
E

 V
T3

80
0-

33
85

37
0

C
A

1,
97

8.
96

1
1,

97
8.

96
0.

00
0

1,
97

8.
96

2.
63

%
1

0.
00

73
99

S
IM

P
LE

R
 L

IF
E

 
80

0-
26

67
73

7
C

A
1,

93
4.

13
1

1,
93

4.
13

0.
00

0
1,

93
4.

13
2.

57
%

1
0.

00
E

M
E

R
G

E
N

C
Y

E
 

50
85

FA
R

W
E

S
T

31
0-

53
2-

95
24

C
A

1,
58

8.
89

2
79

4.
45

0.
00

0
1,

58
8.

89
2.

11
%

2
12

8.
83

C
O

R
R

O
S

IO
N

C
O

N
TR

O
E

 
50

85
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

51
0-

78
2-

10
00

C
A

1,
45

9.
43

1
1,

45
9.

43
0.

00
0

1,
45

9.
43

1.
94

%
1

12
6.

62
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 T

O
O

L
E

 
50

39
C

 S
 U

N
IT

E
C

20
3-

85
39

52
2

C
T

1,
34

2.
32

1
1,

34
2.

32
0.

00
0

1,
34

2.
32

1.
78

%
1

84
.8

3

89
99

IN
 *

K
E

N
 G

R
A

D
Y

 
41

5-
88

35
92

4
C

A
1,

24
7.

99
2

62
4.

00
0.

00
0

1,
24

7.
99

1.
66

%
2

10
4.

79
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

, I
N

73
92

P
S

M
J 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

61
7-

96
5-

00
55

M
A

1,
19

5.
00

1
1,

19
5.

00
0.

00
0

1,
19

5.
00

1.
59

%
1

0.
00

IN
C

E
 

52
31

H
A

Y
W

A
R

D
 C

O
LO

R
 

H
A

Y
W

A
R

D
C

A
1,

15
4.

14
2

57
7.

07
0.

00
0

1,
15

4.
14

1.
53

%
2

0.
00

IN
C

E
 

50
39

G
R

A
N

IT
E

R
O

C
K

 #
21

1
83

1-
76

82
00

0
C

A
93

0.
75

1
93

0.
75

0.
00

0
93

0.
75

1.
24

%
1

0.
00

E
 

51
99

TA
P

 P
LA

S
TI

C
S

 #
 2

0
FR

E
M

O
N

T
C

A
88

4.
93

2
44

2.
47

0.
00

0
88

4.
93

1.
17

%
2

0.
00

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

55
33

D
2L

 P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
 L

LC
G

R
A

P
E

V
IN

E
TX

81
9.

12
1

81
9.

12
0.

00
0

81
9.

12
1.

09
%

1
0.

00

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

81
1.

20
1

81
1.

20
0.

00
0

81
1.

20
1.

08
%

1
0.

00
52

62
48

29
95

70
8

76
99

IN
 *

S
A

B
R

E
 

92
5-

69
85

16
9

C
A

79
9.

64
1

79
9.

64
0.

00
0

79
9.

64
1.

06
%

1
67

.6
4

B
A

C
K

FL
O

W
 IN

C
E

 
50

85
E

FF
IC

IE
N

C
Y

80
0-

55
28

80
0

M
I

77
8.

50
2

38
9.

25
0.

00
0

77
8.

50
1.

03
%

2
0.

00
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

, I
N

E
 

50
65

S
C

H
N

E
ID

E
R

E
LE

C
T

40
1-

39
8-

84
50

N
R

I
77

6.
78

1
77

6.
78

0.
00

0
77

6.
78

1.
03

%
1

0.
00

R
IC

 IT
 C

73
99

TY
LE

R
 U

S
E

R
 

80
0-

80
0-

25
81

O
H

77
5.

00
1

77
5.

00
0.

00
0

77
5.

00
1.

03
%

1
0.

00
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

93
99

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
91

6-
44

2-
78

87
C

A
76

3.
00

3
25

4.
33

0.
00

0
76

3.
00

1.
01

%
3

0.
00

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

D
IS

TR
E

 
50

85
C

IT
R

U
S

 D
E

P
O

T
72

7-
34

47
62

7
FL

72
8.

00
1

72
8.

00
0.

00
0

72
8.

00
0.

97
%

1
0.

00

an
86

99
W

E
F 

W
Y

TH
E

80
0-

66
60

20
6

V
A

66
0.

00
3

22
0.

00
0.

00
0

66
0.

00
0.

88
%

3
0.

00
V

E
L

44
68

G
O

2M
A

R
IN

E
20

6-
78

0-
56

70
W

A
62

4.
05

1
62

4.
05

0.
00

0
62

4.
05

0.
83

%
1

0.
00

59
42

A
M

A
ZO

N
.C

O
M

A
M

ZN
.C

O
M

/B
IL

L
W

A
86

4.
83

10
86

.4
8

24
9.

41
1

61
5.

42
0.

82
%

11
75

.0
2

pp
ly

52
00

B
U

IL
D

-C
H

A
R

G
E

.C
O

80
0-

37
5-

34
03

C
A

59
7.

49
1

59
7.

49
0.

00
0

59
7.

49
0.

79
%

1
0.

00
M

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

56
3.

70
1

56
3.

70
0.

00
0

56
3.

70
0.

75
%

1
0.

00
52

62
48

22
41

30
9

83
98

IS
A

91
9-

54
9-

84
11

N
C

53
0.

00
2

26
5.

00
0.

00
0

53
0.

00
0.

70
%

2
0.

00

59
69

4I
M

P
R

IN
T

87
7-

44
67

74
6

W
I

52
6.

61
1

52
6.

61
0.

00
0

52
6.

61
0.

70
%

1
0.

00
17

71
A

-1
 R

E
A

D
Y

 M
IX

51
0-

69
0-

85
30

C
A

52
0.

93
1

52
0.

93
0.

00
0

52
0.

93
0.

69
%

1
0.

00

59
69

B
&

H
 P

H
O

TO
, 

80
0-

22
15

74
3

N
Y

50
1.

89
1

50
1.

89
0.

00
0

50
1.

89
0.

67
%

1
0.

00
80

0-
60

6-
69

69
72

99
LE

A
D

E
R

S
H

IP
IQ

.C
O

80
0-

81
4-

78
59

G
A

49
8.

00
2

24
9.

00
0.

00
0

49
8.

00
0.

66
%

2
0.

00
M

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

H
O

N
59

65
O

FF
IC

E
 D

E
P

O
T

80
0-

46
3-

37
68

C
A

$
49

0.
31

2
$

24
5.

16
$

0.
00

0
$

49
0.

31
0.

65
%

2
$

42
.5

4
11

35
30

00
U

N
IT

E
D

80
0-

93
2-

27
32

TX
47

0.
70

1
47

0.
70

0.
00

0
47

0.
70

0.
62

%
1

0.
00

01
62

43
50

44
72

0
30

00
U

N
IT

E
D

80
0-

93
2-

27
32

TX
47

0.
70

1
47

0.
70

0.
00

0
47

0.
70

0.
62

%
1

0.
00

01
62

43
50

44
72

1
30

00
U

N
IT

E
D

80
0-

93
2-

27
32

TX
47

0.
70

1
47

0.
70

0.
00

0
47

0.
70

0.
62

%
1

0.
00

01
62

43
50

44
72

2
59

69
N

S
C

*N
O

R
TH

E
R

N
80

0-
63

1-
12

46
N

Y
46

8.
18

1
46

8.
18

0.
00

0
46

8.
18

0.
62

%
1

0.
00

S
A

FE
TY

 C
O

E
 

50
65

C
O

N
TR

O
LL

E
D

42
5-

48
51

77
8

W
A

45
0.

00
1

45
0.

00
0.

00
0

45
0.

00
0.

60
%

1
0.

00
P

O
W

E
R

59
42

D
E

V
TR

A
 IN

C
.

O
A

K
V

IL
LE

O
N

44
4.

56
1

44
4.

56
0.

00
0

44
4.

56
0.

59
%

1
0.

00

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

44
4.

20
1

44
4.

20
0.

00
0

44
4.

20
0.

59
%

1
0.

00
52

62
48

16
42

15
1

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

44
4.

20
1

44
4.

20
0.

00
0

44
4.

20
0.

59
%

1
0.

00
52

62
48

16
42

15
2

pp
ly

52
00

LO
W

E
S

 #
01

13
2*

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
43

6.
75

5
87

.3
5

0.
00

0
43

6.
75

0.
58

%
5

37
.8

5
82

99
TE

C
H

S
TR

E
E

T
80

0-
69

9-
92

77
M

I
43

4.
72

1
43

4.
72

0.
00

0
43

4.
72

0.
58

%
1

0.
00

83
98

N
FP

A
 N

A
TL

 F
IR

E
 

80
0-

34
4-

35
55

M
A

43
0.

00
1

43
0.

00
0.

00
0

43
0.

00
0.

57
%

1
0.

00
P

R
O

TE
C

T
55

11
M

IS
S

IO
N

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 

S
A

N
 J

O
S

E
C

A
40

4.
26

1
40

4.
26

0.
00

0
40

4.
26

0.
54

%
1

0.
00

FO
R

D
 P

A
R

TS
89

11
B

R
O

W
N

 A
N

D
 

92
5-

21
02

27
7

C
O

40
0.

00
2

20
0.

00
0.

00
0

40
0.

00
0.

53
%

2
0.

00
C

A
LD

W
E

LL
59

99
IN

D
U

S
TR

IA
LS

U
P

P
L

80
0-

91
6-

50
27

U
T

39
8.

10
1

39
8.

10
0.

00
0

39
8.

10
0.

53
%

1
0.

00
Y

A
M

E
57

34
B

A
M

B
O

O
87

7-
22

6-
26

62
V

A
39

6.
00

1
39

6.
00

0.
00

0
39

6.
00

0.
53

%
1

0.
00

S
O

LU
TI

O
N

S
59

69
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 P
U

B
LI

C
 

81
64

72
61

00
M

O
39

5.
00

1
39

5.
00

0.
00

0
39

5.
00

0.
52

%
1

0.
00

W
O

R
K

S
E

 
50

99
LA

N
D

TE
C

 N
O

R
TH

 
90

9-
78

3-
36

36
C

A
38

7.
63

1
38

7.
63

0.
00

0
38

7.
63

0.
51

%
1

27
.9

1

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

A
M

E
R

IC
A

 IN
E

 
50

72
B

U
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
92

5-
86

61
41

2
C

A
38

3.
83

2
19

1.
92

0.
00

0
38

3.
83

0.
51

%
2

0.
00

S
A

FE
TY

 L
A

B
O

R
A

T
57

34
S

Y
S

TE
M

TO
O

LS
83

0-
77

9-
23

49
TX

37
8.

00
1

37
8.

00
0.

00
0

37
8.

00
0.

50
%

1
0.

00
S

O
FT

W
A

R
E

 IN
C

O
E

 
50

85
IN

TE
R

TE
X

 IN
C

62
6-

38
53

30
0

C
A

37
7.

53
1

37
7.

53
0.

00
0

37
7.

53
0.

50
%

1
27

.5
7

E
 

53
31

LC
P

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

 L
LC

84
7-

66
2-

26
26

IL
36

5.
76

1
36

5.
76

0.
00

0
36

5.
76

0.
49

%
1

0.
00

an
86

99
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
31

2-
97

7-
97

00
IL

36
5.

00
2

18
2.

50
0.

00
0

36
5.

00
0.

48
%

2
0.

00
FI

N
A

N
C

E
an

86
99

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
80

0-
92

6-
73

37
C

O
34

9.
00

1
34

9.
00

0.
00

0
34

9.
00

0.
46

%
1

0.
00

W
A

TE
R

W
O

R
K

S
30

66
S

O
U

TH
W

E
S

80
0-

43
5-

97
92

TX
32

8.
70

1
32

8.
70

0.
00

0
32

8.
70

0.
44

%
1

0.
00

52
62

47
38

69
70

3
30

66
S

O
U

TH
W

E
S

80
0-

43
5-

97
92

TX
32

8.
70

1
32

8.
70

0.
00

0
32

8.
70

0.
44

%
1

0.
00

52
62

48
03

66
72

5
E

 
50

65
N

E
W

A
R

K
 U

S
 

77
3-

90
75

74
0

IL
31

7.
34

2
15

8.
67

0.
00

0
31

7.
34

0.
42

%
2

25
.7

3
00

07
00

00
00

75
73

92
S

 M
 R

 P
40

4-
25

2-
36

63
G

A
31

0.
00

1
31

0.
00

0.
00

0
31

0.
00

0.
41

%
1

0.
00

93
99

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
 C

IT
Y

 
51

0-
67

5-
53

81
C

A
30

2.
00

1
30

2.
00

0.
00

0
30

2.
00

0.
40

%
1

0.
00

H
A

LL
73

38
C

O
N

TE
N

T
51

0-
50

5-
11

00
C

A
30

0.
99

1
30

0.
99

0.
00

0
30

0.
99

0.
40

%
1

0.
00

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

C
O

R
an

86
99

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
53

0-
75

5-
49

22
C

A
29

9.
00

2
14

9.
50

0.
00

0
29

9.
00

0.
40

%
2

0.
00

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
55

33
FL

E
E

TP
R

ID
E

 7
20

80
0-

23
33

03
8

C
A

28
7.

49
2

14
3.

75
0.

00
0

28
7.

49
0.

38
%

2
6.

12

59
43

O
FF

IC
E

S
U

P
P

LY
.C

O
86

6-
30

2-
53

97
W

I
28

6.
20

2
14

3.
10

0.
00

0
28

6.
20

0.
38

%
2

22
.4

2
M

E
 

50
45

IN
TE

LL
IG

E
N

, V
IE

W
 

87
7-

48
4-

39
48

FL
28

4.
78

2
14

2.
39

0.
00

0
28

4.
78

0.
38

%
2

0.
00

G
U

A
R

D
57

34
A

V
A

N
G

A
TE

*V
IR

TO
S

88
8-

24
71

61
4

C
A

27
4.

50
1

27
4.

50
0.

00
0

27
4.

50
0.

36
%

1
0.

00
O

FT
W

A
R

E

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

E
 

51
37

LA
N

D
S

 E
N

D
 B

U
S

 
80

0-
58

7-
15

41
W

I
$

27
4.

34
2

$
13

7.
17

$
0.

00
0

$
27

4.
34

0.
36

%
2

$
26

.9
2

O
U

TF
IT

TE
R

S
E

 
53

99
S

M
A

R
TS

IG
N

71
8-

79
7-

19
00

N
Y

27
3.

67
1

27
3.

67
0.

00
0

27
3.

67
0.

36
%

1
0.

00

E
 

50
74

K
U

LL
Y

 S
U

P
P

LY
80

0-
51

8-
53

88
M

N
26

9.
69

2
13

4.
85

0.
00

0
26

9.
69

0.
36

%
2

0.
00

E
 

50
47

TE
LE

D
Y

N
E

 IS
C

O
40

2-
46

40
23

1
N

E
26

9.
03

1
26

9.
03

0.
00

0
26

9.
03

0.
36

%
1

23
.3

4

83
98

N
A

C
E

80
0-

79
7-

62
23

TX
26

0.
00

2
13

0.
00

0.
00

0
26

0.
00

0.
35

%
2

0.
00

IN
TE

R
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L

73
99

N
A

C
W

A
20

2-
83

32
67

2
D

C
25

0.
00

1
25

0.
00

0.
00

0
25

0.
00

0.
33

%
1

0.
00

E
 

50
85

TI
FC

O
 IN

D
U

S
TR

IE
S

 
28

1-
57

16
00

0
TX

24
8.

18
1

24
8.

18
0.

00
0

24
8.

18
0.

33
%

1
16

.3
0

IN
C

E
 

50
45

D
M

I*
 D

E
LL

 
80

0-
98

1-
33

55
TX

24
2.

43
1

24
2.

43
0.

00
0

24
2.

43
0.

32
%

1
0.

00
K

-1
2/

G
O

V
T

73
11

C
R

A
IG

S
LI

S
T.

O
R

G
41

5-
39

9-
52

00
C

A
22

5.
00

2
11

2.
50

0.
00

0
22

5.
00

0.
30

%
2

0.
00

pp
ly

52
00

LO
W

E
S

 #
02

27
3*

D
U

B
LI

N
C

A
21

9.
05

1
21

9.
05

0.
00

0
21

9.
05

0.
29

%
1

18
.0

9
57

34
S

O
U

R
C

E
G

E
A

R
 D

B
A

 
ZU

M
E

R
O

.C
O

M
IL

21
0.

00
1

21
0.

00
0.

00
0

21
0.

00
0.

28
%

1
0.

00
ZU

M
E

R
O

E
 

50
65

75
47

 R
O

Y
A

L
S

A
N

 L
E

A
N

D
R

O
C

A
20

0.
00

1
20

0.
00

0.
00

0
20

0.
00

0.
27

%
1

0.
00

57
34

A
D

O
B

E
 S

Y
S

TE
M

S
, 

80
0-

83
3-

66
87

C
A

19
9.

00
1

19
9.

00
0.

00
0

19
9.

00
0.

26
%

1
0.

00
IN

C
.

59
43

O
FF

IC
E

 D
E

P
O

T 
H

A
Y

W
A

R
D

C
A

18
7.

47
1

18
7.

47
0.

00
0

18
7.

47
0.

25
%

1
15

.4
8

#2
16

0
pp

ly
52

00
O

R
C

H
A

R
D

 S
U

P
P

LY
 

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

18
7.

35
2

93
.6

8
0.

00
0

18
7.

35
0.

25
%

2
15

.4
7

#1
00

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

18
6.

20
1

18
6.

20
0.

00
0

18
6.

20
0.

25
%

1
0.

00
52

62
47

49
06

52
0

E
 

50
72

TH
E

 L
IG

H
TH

O
U

S
E

H
A

Y
W

A
R

D
C

A
18

5.
72

2
92

.8
6

0.
00

0
18

5.
72

0.
25

%
2

0.
00

30
57

V
IR

G
IN

 A
M

E
R

 
87

7-
35

98
47

4
C

A
18

4.
20

1
18

4.
20

0.
00

0
18

4.
20

0.
24

%
1

0.
00

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

98
42

14
17

77
09

4
E

 
50

85
R

E
E

D
 &

 G
R

A
H

A
M

, 
S

A
N

 J
O

S
E

C
A

18
3.

52
1

18
3.

52
0.

00
0

18
3.

52
0.

24
%

1
0.

00
IN

C
.

E
 

50
99

R
O

U
TE

A
R

R
O

W
S

-T
41

5-
26

54
66

3
C

A
18

2.
43

1
18

2.
43

0.
00

0
18

2.
43

0.
24

%
1

13
.5

9
U

R
N

TO
O

LZ
 L

LC
82

49
N

A
TL

/P
A

D
G

E
T

91
3-

43
27

75
5

K
S

17
9.

00
1

17
9.

00
0.

00
0

17
9.

00
0.

24
%

1
0.

00
80

06
82

50
61

N
K

IN
58

14
C

H
IP

O
TL

E
 1

52
9

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
15

6.
63

4
39

.1
6

0.
00

0
15

6.
63

0.
21

%
4

0.
00

73
72

IN
 *

P
E

R
IS

C
O

P
E

 
51

2-
47

29
06

2
TX

15
0.

00
1

15
0.

00
0.

00
0

15
0.

00
0.

20
%

1
0.

00
H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, I

O
N

F.
86

41
FR

E
M

O
N

T
51

0-
79

52
24

4
C

A
13

5.
00

1
13

5.
00

0.
00

0
13

5.
00

0.
18

%
1

0.
00

C
H

A
M

B
E

R
 O

F 
C

O
M

M
E

R
E

 
50

99
FR

E
S

H
W

A
TE

R
87

7-
33

5-
33

39
S

C
13

0.
58

1
13

0.
58

0.
00

0
13

0.
58

0.
17

%
1

0.
00

E
FI

LT
E

R
56

61
M

U
C

K
A

N
D

S
TU

FF
81

7-
32

6-
54

70
TX

12
9.

95
1

12
9.

95
0.

00
0

12
9.

95
0.

17
%

1
0.

00
59

42
A

M
A

ZO
N

A
M

ZN
.C

O
M

/B
IL

L
W

A
17

1.
79

4
42

.9
5

41
.8

5
1

12
9.

94
0.

17
%

5
3.

64
M

K
TP

LA
C

E
 P

M
TS

93
99

U
S

G
O

V
T 

P
R

IN
T 

20
2-

51
2-

10
65

D
C

12
8.

00
1

12
8.

00
0.

00
0

12
8.

00
0.

17
%

1
0.

00
O

FC
 3

2
E

 
50

47
ID

E
X

X
80

0-
81

4-
11

47
M

E
12

4.
37

1
12

4.
37

0.
00

0
12

4.
37

0.
17

%
1

8.
48

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 IN
C

82
99

TA
Y

LO
R

 &
 F

R
A

N
C

IS
 

56
1-

36
1-

60
00

K
Y

11
3.

84
1

11
3.

84
0.

00
0

11
3.

84
0.

15
%

1
0.

00
B

O
O

K
S

59
43

O
FF

IC
E

 M
A

X
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

11
3.

61
2

56
.8

1
0.

00
0

11
3.

61
0.

15
%

2
11

.1
6

pp
ly

52
00

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 S

U
P

P
LY

 
LI

V
E

R
M

O
R

E
C

A
11

3.
27

1
11

3.
27

0.
00

0
11

3.
27

0.
15

%
1

9.
35

#0
70

E
 

53
11

S
E

A
R

S
.C

O
M

 9
30

0
80

0-
34

9-
43

58
IA

10
9.

49
1

10
9.

49
0.

00
0

10
9.

49
0.

15
%

1
9.

50

O
75

38
JO

S
E

 G
O

N
ZA

LE
S

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

10
8.

75
1

10
8.

75
0.

00
0

10
8.

75
0.

14
%

1
0.

00
E

 
50

85
W

W
 G

R
A

IN
G

E
R

87
7-

20
22

59
4

P
A

10
7.

94
1

10
7.

94
0.

00
0

10
7.

94
0.

14
%

1
8.

33

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

E
 

50
46

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
S

U
P

P
LY

80
0-

59
18

90
7

V
A

$
10

6.
24

1
$

10
6.

24
$

0.
00

0
$

10
6.

24
0.

14
%

1
$

0.
00

C
O

M
83

98
C

G
A

70
3-

83
6-

17
09

V
A

10
0.

00
1

10
0.

00
0.

00
0

10
0.

00
0.

13
%

1
0.

00

an
86

99
P

A
Y

P
A

L
40

2-
93

5-
77

33
C

A
10

0.
00

1
10

0.
00

0.
00

0
10

0.
00

0.
13

%
1

0.
00

*P
IP

E
U

S
E

R
S

G
R

17
99

C
LA

S
S

IC
 G

R
A

P
H

IC
S

N
E

W
A

R
K

C
A

94
.7

3
1

94
.7

3
0.

00
0

94
.7

3
0.

13
%

1
0.

00

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

91
.0

0
1

91
.0

0
0.

00
0

91
.0

0
0.

12
%

1
0.

00
52

62
48

22
60

95
1

O
N

F.
86

41
P

A
Y

P
A

L 
*M

S
A

 S
F 

40
2-

93
5-

77
33

C
A

90
.0

0
4

22
.5

0
0.

00
0

90
.0

0
0.

12
%

4
0.

00
B

A
Y

an
72

16
G

R
E

E
N

 L
E

A
F 

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

85
.0

0
1

85
.0

0
0.

00
0

85
.0

0
0.

11
%

1
0.

00
C

LE
A

N
E

R
S

E
 

50
72

C
E

LE
B

R
A

TI
O

N
51

0-
88

7-
27

29
C

A
80

.0
0

1
80

.0
0

0.
00

0
80

.0
0

0.
11

%
1

0.
00

P
A

R
TY

 E
Q

U
IP

E
 

50
85

C
U

M
M

IN
S

 P
A

C
IF

IC
80

0-
74

6-
57

57
C

A
77

.0
3

1
77

.0
3

0.
00

0
77

.0
3

0.
10

%
1

0.
00

E
 

51
69

N
S

I S
O

LU
TI

O
N

S
 IN

C
R

A
LE

IG
H

N
C

77
.0

0
1

77
.0

0
0.

00
0

77
.0

0
0.

10
%

1
0.

00

E
 

51
11

K
E

LL
Y

 4
2 

- 
H

A
Y

W
A

R
D

C
A

76
.6

2
2

38
.3

1
0.

00
0

76
.6

2
0.

10
%

2
6.

65
H

A
Y

W
A

R
D

30
66

S
O

U
TH

W
E

S
80

0-
43

5-
97

92
TX

76
.1

0
1

76
.1

0
0.

00
0

76
.1

0
0.

10
%

1
0.

00
52

62
47

24
58

37
5

E
 

50
99

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
S

IG
N

80
0-

57
8-

12
45

IL
74

.0
0

1
74

.0
0

0.
00

0
74

.0
0

0.
10

%
1

0.
00

S
.C

O
M

72
99

TH
E

 L
IV

IN
G

 
51

0-
39

7-
04

73
C

A
70

.0
0

1
70

.0
0

0.
00

0
70

.0
0

0.
09

%
1

0.
00

C
U

R
R

IC
U

LU
M

N
K

IN
58

12
C

H
A

A
T 

B
H

A
V

A
N

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

68
.4

1
1

68
.4

1
0.

00
0

68
.4

1
0.

09
%

1
0.

00

73
99

E
B

 *
A

TC
-2

0 
P

O
S

T 
88

8-
81

0-
20

63
C

A
64

.2
9

1
64

.2
9

0.
00

0
64

.2
9

0.
09

%
1

0.
00

E
A

R
TH

Q
E

 
52

51
IN

 *
C

O
M

FO
R

T 
71

4-
55

04
97

1
C

A
61

.5
0

1
61

.5
0

0.
00

0
61

.5
0

0.
08

%
1

0.
00

FI
R

S
T 

P
R

O
D

U
C

T

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

93
99

C
A

 D
E

P
T 

P
E

S
T 

91
6-

44
53

89
1

C
A

$
60

.0
0

1
$

60
.0

0
$

0.
00

0
$

60
.0

0
0.

08
%

1
$

0.
00

R
E

G
 P

U
B

LI
C

A
an

86
99

IN
T'

L 
C

O
D

E
 

88
8-

42
2-

72
33

IL
58

.1
8

1
58

.1
8

0.
00

0
58

.1
8

0.
08

%
1

0.
00

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 IN
C

O
55

99
P

E
TE

R
S

O
N

 P
O

W
E

R
 

51
0-

35
76

20
0

C
A

57
.4

3
1

57
.4

3
0.

00
0

57
.4

3
0.

08
%

1
0.

00
S

Y
S

TE
M

S
59

99
P

A
R

TY
 C

IT
Y

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

56
.7

7
1

56
.7

7
0.

00
0

56
.7

7
0.

08
%

1
4.

69
N

K
IN

58
12

C
H

IL
I'S

 U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

54
.3

3
1

54
.3

3
0.

00
0

54
.3

3
0.

07
%

1
0.

00

pp
ly

52
00

LO
W

E
S

 #
01

89
5*

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

51
.4

2
1

51
.4

2
0.

00
0

51
.4

2
0.

07
%

1
4.

24
an

86
99

N
C

C
C

O
-S

A
LT

 L
A

K
E

 
80

1-
36

3-
26

93
U

T
50

.0
0

1
50

.0
0

0.
00

0
50

.0
0

0.
07

%
1

0.
00

C
IT

Y
N

K
IN

58
14

M
R

 P
IC

K
LE

S
 3

25
 - 

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
46

.6
8

1
46

.6
8

0.
00

0
46

.6
8

0.
06

%
1

0.
00

U
N

IO
N

59
99

P
A

R
TY

 C
IT

Y
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

45
.5

3
1

45
.5

3
0.

00
0

45
.5

3
0.

06
%

1
3.

95
48

16
Y

A
H

O
O

40
8-

91
6-

21
49

C
A

41
.8

2
3

13
.9

4
0.

00
0

41
.8

2
0.

06
%

3
0.

00
*B

A
Y

A
R

E
A

B
IO

S
O

LI
73

99
H

IR
IN

G
 P

R
O

D
U

C
TS

R
E

S
U

M
E

G
IG

.C
O

M
81

.5
5

4
20

.3
9

39
.8

0
1

41
.7

5
0.

06
%

5
0.

00

59
70

M
IC

H
A

E
LS

 S
TO

R
E

S
 

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

39
.9

2
1

39
.9

2
0.

00
0

39
.9

2
0.

05
%

1
0.

00
48

12
79

97
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

53
0-

75
5-

49
22

C
A

39
.0

0
1

39
.0

0
0.

00
0

39
.0

0
0.

05
%

1
0.

00
A

S
S

O
C

IA
TI

O
N

73
99

A
LL

 IN
 O

N
E

 
71

4-
52

17
72

0
C

A
36

.2
0

1
36

.2
0

0.
00

0
36

.2
0

0.
05

%
1

0.
00

P
O

S
TE

R
 C

O
M

P
59

42
A

M
A

ZO
N

.C
O

M
A

M
ZN

.C
O

M
/B

IL
L

W
A

36
.1

9
1

36
.1

9
0.

00
0

36
.1

9
0.

05
%

1
3.

14

E
 

53
11

S
E

A
R

S
 R

O
E

B
U

C
K

N
E

W
A

R
K

C
A

33
.7

6
1

33
.7

6
0.

00
0

33
.7

6
0.

04
%

1
2.

79
16

98
55

11
FH

 D
A

IL
E

Y
 

S
A

N
 L

E
A

N
D

R
O

C
A

30
.5

2
1

30
.5

2
0.

00
0

30
.5

2
0.

04
%

1
2.

58
C

H
E

V
R

O
LE

T
59

43
O

FF
IC

E
M

A
X

/O
FF

IC
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

26
.7

9
1

26
.7

9
0.

00
0

26
.7

9
0.

04
%

1
2.

32
E

D
E

P
O

T6
17

7
E

 
50

85
P

E
N

N
 D

E
TR

O
IT

 
21

5-
33

5-
05

00
P

A
42

.1
5

2
21

.0
8

20
.1

7
1

21
.9

8
0.

03
%

3
3.

62

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 
of

 1
70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

D
IE

S
E

E
 

53
99

R
O

G
E

R
'S

 C
A

M
P

IN
G

 
FR

E
M

O
N

T
C

A
18

.9
6

1
18

.9
6

0.
00

0
18

.9
6

0.
03

%
1

0.
00

TR
A

IL
E

R
S

,
59

43
TH

E
S

TA
M

P
M

A
K

E
R

88
8-

45
1-

73
00

M
I

15
.4

5
1

15
.4

5
0.

00
0

15
.4

5
0.

02
%

1
0.

00

75
23

S
FM

TA
 C

IV
IC

 C
TR

 
S

A
N

 F
R

A
N

C
IS

C
O

C
A

15
.0

0
1

15
.0

0
0.

00
0

15
.0

0
0.

02
%

1
0.

00
G

A
R

A
G

E
E

 
52

51
H

A
R

B
O

R
 F

R
E

IG
H

T 
N

E
W

A
R

K
C

A
11

.9
7

1
11

.9
7

0.
00

0
11

.9
7

0.
02

%
1

0.
99

TO
O

LS
 3

8
E

 
53

10
W

A
L-

M
A

R
T 

#2
03

1
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

5.
43

1
5.

43
0.

00
0

5.
43

0.
01

%
1

0.
47

89
99

H
IR

IN
G

 P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
R

E
S

U
M

E
G

IG
.C

O
M

39
.8

0
1

39
.8

0
39

.8
0

1
0.

00
0.

00
%

2
0.

00

an
57

19
B

E
D

 B
A

TH
 &

 
FR

E
M

O
N

T
C

A
87

.1
9

1
87

.1
9

87
.1

9
1

0.
00

0.
00

%
2

7.
20

B
E

Y
O

N
D

 #
21

8
E

 
53

31
LC

P
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
 L

LC
84

76
62

26
26

IL
0.

00
0

0.
00

36
5.

76
1

(3
65

.7
6)

0.
00

%
1

0.
00

59
69

LA
B

O
R

50
7-

66
3-

12
20

M
N

0.
00

0
0.

00
55

0.
00

2
(5

50
.0

0)
(0

.7
3%

)
2

0.
00

A
R

B
IT

R
A

TI
O

N
 IN

S
T

$7
6,

77
5.

99
$1

,4
31

.9
8

$7
5,

34
4.

01
24

5
$

1,
18

4.
34

:  
   

   
 1

50

E
nd

 o
f R

ep
or

t

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 0
4/

16
/2

01
5 

13
:2

0:
24

 

of
 1

70



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 0

4/
16

/2
01

5
d 

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l O
ut

pu
t P

ar
am

et
er

 P
ag

e

C
yc

le
 C

lo
se

 D
at

e 
R

an
ge

:
01

/2
01

5 
to

 0
3/

20
15

R
ep

or
t T

yp
e:

D
et

ai
l

M
er

ch
an

t P
ro

fil
e 

So
ur

ce
:

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

M
er

ch
an

t N
am

es
:

A
ll

M
er

ch
an

t C
at

eg
or

y 
C

od
e 

G
ro

up
:

A
ll

M
er

ch
an

t S
ta

te
s:

A
ll

So
rt

 R
ep

or
t B

y:
(1

) T
ot

al
 S

pe
nd

, (
2)

 N
o 

S
or

t, 
(3

) N
o 

S
or

t, 
(4

) N
o 

S
or

t
B

re
ak

/S
ub

to
ta

l L
ev

el
:

N
o 

B
re

ak
/S

ub
to

ta
l

ch
y 

Po
si

tio
n:

B
an

k
A

ge
nt

C
om

pa
ny

D
iv

is
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

14
25

31
35

51
75

6
A

ll
A

ll

s 
- D

et
ai

l /
 tr

ou
ng

1 
/ 0

4/
16

/2
01

5 
13

:2
0:

24
 / 

M
er

ch
an

tS
pe

nd
A

na
ly

si
sR

ep
or

t1
42

92
08

41
97

18
_1

37
0_

03
48

82
43

02
86

15
57

86
 

of
 1

70



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

David M. O’Hara 
Attorney

DATE: April 20, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach 
 Alex Paredes, Environmental Programs Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11.c - Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Information Item: Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s 
Class I Permitted Industries  

Recommendation

Information Only 

Background

The Certificates of Merit event is an annual event that is held to recognize industries 
that have exceeded the requirements of their wastewater discharge permits during the 
prior calendar year and that have demonstrated their continued commitment to 
protecting the environment.  In addition, the certificates recognize industries that have 
consistently complied with and implemented pollution prevention measures, maintained 
a cooperative relationship with the District and demonstrated continuing awareness and 
understanding of environmental issues and requirements.

The District has invited representatives from thirty-two (32) Significant Industrial Users 
(SIUs) with Class I Wastewater Discharge Permits, to receive Certificates of Merit on 
May 28, 2015 at 3:00 p.m. at the District offices.  District staff commends these thirty-
two SIU’s for their excellent performance during 2014 and the Board of Directors is 
invited to attend this presentation and congratulate the Certificate of Merit recipients for 
a job well done.

Page 111 of 170



Agenda Item No. 11.c 
Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Page 2 

Companies receiving the Certificates of Merit are: 

City of Fremont (26 of 30 SIUs) 

Amphenol Thermometrics 
Analog Semiconductors 
Applied Thin Film Products 
Bay Area Circuits 
Clean Science Inc. 
Clean Sciences Technology 
Compugraphics
Enablence USA Comp Inc. 
Finisar Corp. 
Intematix Corp. 
Intevac Inc 
Kaiser Permanente 
Lam Research  CA 3 
Lam Research CA 30 
Materion Electrofusion 
Microwave Technology Inc 
Neo Photonics 
Nitinol Devices & Components Inc #1 
Pantronix Corp. 
Quality Transport 
Quantum Clean #2 
Seagate Technology LLC#3 
Soraa, Inc. 
Tri-Cities Waste Management 
Washington Hospital 
Western Digital Corp. Bldg #1 

City of Newark  (2 of 4 SIUs) 

Britech Electropolishing 
Matheson Tri-Gas Inc 

City of Union City (4 of 4 SIUs) 

Electrochem Solutions 
Royal Truck Body 
Star Pacific Inc. 
US Pipe & Foundry Company 

PRE/SEG/MD/AP:av

Page 112 of 170



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 20, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11d – Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Information Item: Third Quarterly Report on the Capital 
Improvement Program for FY’15 

Recommendation:

Information only

Background:

In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for 
FY’15 in the amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects. 
The third quarter expenditures for FY’15 are shown on the attached budget projection 
graphs. These graphs depict actual expenditures versus approved budget for the 
Capacity Fund 900, the Renewal and Replacement Fund 800, as well as for both funds
combined.

The total CIP expenditure up to March 31, 2015, was below the projections for the third 
quarter by only $11,000. The main projects that incurred considerably less or more 
more than the projected expenditures are listed below. 

These primary variances are tabulated as follows:

Project Variance at 
the end of 
3rd Quarter 
(x $1000)

Comments

Thickener Control Building 
Improvements

- 501 Contracor is about two months 
behind schedule.  The delays 
are mainly due to a late start by 
the contractor and requests for 
clarifications on the design of 
the electrical building.

Page 113 of 170



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of April 27, 2015
Page 2

Project Variance at 
the end of 
3rd Quarter 
(x $1000)

Comments

Jarvis Ave (MSR V) Sewer 
Replacement 

+ 160 Construction bid amount was 
about $35,000 above approved 
budget. Design Contract 
amendment was about $34,000. 
Other expenditures included
ACWD’s for relocating a number 
of waterline crossings.

Digester No. 5 +330 Construction bid amount is 
about $330,000 above approved 
budget.

Total Variance for the 3rd Qtr. - 11 

The following Priority 1 projects will be either in design or in construction during the last 
quarter of FY’15: 

1. Alvarado-Niles Blvd. Sewer Rehab
2. Fremont & PP LS Internal Lift Pumps
3. Pine St. Easement Project
4. Cogeneration Project
5. Thickener Control Building Improvements

In addition, several other smaller projects will be either in design or in construction 
during the remainder of FY’15. 

PRE/SEG:ks 

Attachment: Budget Projection Graphs

Page 114 of 170



 

2,
04

5

6,
46

0
8,

97
5

11
,6

30

2,
10

7

6,
40

0

9,
38

6

12
,2

40

$0

$2
,0

00

$4
,0

00

$6
,0

00

$8
,0

00

$1
0,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

$1
4,

00
0 Ju

l 1
4

Se
pt

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
n-

15

Fu
nd

 8
00

 B
ud

ge
t

Fu
nd

 8
00

 A
ct

ua
l

Fu
nd

 8
00

 P
ro

je
ct

ed

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 R

&
R 

CI
P 

3rd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 B

ud
ge

t P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Gr
ap

hs
 

P
ag

e 
11

5 
of

 1
70



 

52
3

1,
53

3

2,
40

0

3,
24

3

49
5 

 

 1
,4

03
  

 1
,9

78
  

3,
08

7 

$0

$5
00

$1
,0

00

$1
,5

00

$2
,0

00

$2
,5

00

$3
,0

00

$3
,5

00 Ju
l 1

4
Se

pt
-1

4
D

ec
-1

4
M

ar
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Fu
nd

 9
00

 B
ud

ge
t

Fu
nd

 9
00

 A
ct

ua
l

Fu
nd

 9
00

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
  

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 

CI
P 

3rd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 B

ud
ge

t P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Gr
ap

hs
 

P
ag

e 
11

6 
of

 1
70



 

2,
56

8

7,
99

3

11
,3

75
 

14
,8

73

2,
60

2

7,
80

3

11
,3

64

15
,3

27
 

$0

$2
,0

00

$4
,0

00

$6
,0

00

$8
,0

00

$1
0,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

$1
4,

00
0

$1
6,

00
0

$1
8,

00
0 Ju

l 1
4

Se
pt

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
n-

15

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

To
ta

l A
ct

ua
l

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

ed

   

To
ta

l C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

To
ta

l C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

CI
P 

3rd
 Q

ua
rt

er
 B

ud
ge

t P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Gr
ap

hs
 

P
ag

e 
11

7 
of

 1
70



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 20, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11e – Meeting of April 27, 2015 
Information Item: Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects

Recommendation

Information only

Background

In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program budget for FY’15 
in the amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects.

These 21 projects are further ranked as Priority 1 and 2 projects based on a criteria 
prepared by staff and approved by the Executive Team. A copy of the criteria used to 
prioritize the projects is attached for your reference.

The status of the Priority 1 CIP projects is reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of 
each quarter and a copy of the status report is attached for the Board’s review. For 
FY’15, nine (9) projects are ranked as Priority 1 projects and the remaining twelve (12)
are ranked as Priority 2 projects.

Also attached is a tabular summary of the number and nature of the ongoing CIP 
projects at the District during FY’15. 

PRE/SEG:ks 

Attachments: Priority 1 CIP Project Criteria
Priority 2 & 3 CIP Project Criteria
Priority 1 CIP Projects Status Report
Summary of CIP Projects for FY 15

Page 118 of 170



PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA

Priority 1 Projects: 

1. Project to repair or prevent an imminent critical infrastructure failure that could 
result in a threat to the public, or result in permit non-compliance.

2. A project designed to address public health and safety or employee health 
and safety.

3. Project to provide additional capacity in order to allow connection to the 
District system or to prevent a potential wet weather overflow from occurring.

4. Projects that have a deadline tied to receiving a loan or grant funding.

5. Projects where we have made a timeline commitment to a customer or other 
outside stakeholder.

6. A project in which the District may suffer financial losses or claims should the 
project be delayed.

7. A project which is part of a sequence of projects whose delay could result in 
delays to other projects at USD or other agencies.

8. A project in which an internal commitment has been made to provide a facility 
that significantly impacts another group from efficiently and effectively 
carrying out their core work.  (Not a “nice to have” type project)

These criteria can apply to a study, design, or construction project.

Page 119 of 170



PRIORITY 2 & 3 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA

Priority 2 Projects

1. These are planned projects related to the replacement of electrical and 
mechanical equipment identified by the Plant Master Plan – this 
equipment is not in imminent danger of failure but needs to be replaced at 
a future date.

2. These are planned pipeline rehab/replacement projects that are identified 
either by the Master Plan or by the Maintenance staff and need to be 
completed to improve the condition of existing sewers to safeguard 
against potential maintenance problems – these pipelines are not in 
imminent danger of failure.

3. These projects do not have any immediate negative impacts on either 
other agencies or other projects.

4. Examples: Blacow Road Sewer Replacement, Cast Iron Pipe 
Replacement, Thickener Mechanism 3&4 Replacement, Rehab of 
Clarifiers 5&6.

Priority 3 Projects

1. These are capacity projects identified by the master plans that will address 
future capacity needs of the District.

2. These projects are place holders and need to be defined at a future date
3. The District will not suffer any financial loss or claim, if these projects are 

delayed.
4. Examples: Cedar Relief Sewer, Hetch Hetchy Relief Sewer, Digester 

No. 7, Secondary Clarifiers 7 & 8. 

Page 120 of 170



Pr
io

rit
y 

1 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r F
Y 

15
 –

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

or
t

Pr
oj

ec
t

Pl
an

ne
d 

M
ile

st
on

es
St

at
us

 a
fte

r 1
st

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 2

nd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 3

rd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 4

th

Q
ua

rt
er

1
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s 
B

lv
d.

S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

C
om

pl
et

e 
de

si
gn

 b
y

M
ay

, 
op

en
 b

id
s 

by
 J

un
e,

 2
01

5.
50

%
 d

es
ig

n 
du

e
N

ov
em

be
r 2

1,
 2

01
4.

 
90

%
 d

es
ig

n 
is

 d
ue

 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
6t

h.
10

0%
 d

es
ig

n 
su

bm
itt

al
 re

ce
iv

ed
 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 

co
m

m
en

ce
d.

2
Ja

rv
is

 A
ve

. S
ew

er
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
C

om
pl

et
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

by
Ja

nu
ar

y,
 2

01
5.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
45

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.

B
oa

rd
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
t o

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

4t
h.

 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
nd

Q
ua

rte
r.

3
P

in
e 

St
. E

as
em

en
t

C
om

pl
et

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 b
eg

in
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l r
ev

ie
w

 
pr

oc
es

s 
by

 J
un

e,
 2

01
5.

D
es

ig
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 is

 
se

le
ct

ed
 a

nd
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 

un
de

rw
ay

 fo
r t

as
k 

or
de

r t
o 

ev
al

ua
te

 
pi

pe
 b

rid
ge

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
.

Fi
el

d 
su

rv
ey

in
g 

an
d 

ge
ot

ec
h 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
to

be
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
. 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 fi

el
d 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
an

d 
ge

ot
ec

h 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n.

B
rid

ge
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
Te

ch
 M

em
o 

du
e 

in
 

A
pr

il.
4

U
pp

er
 H

et
ch

 H
et

ch
y

S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

A
pr

il,
 2

01
5.

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
of

 2
4

an
d 

27
-in

ch
 p

ip
e 

in
 

Fr
em

on
ti

s 
co

m
pl

et
e.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
65

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

90
%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

B
oa

rd
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
t o

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 9

th
.

5
Fr

em
on

t &
 P

as
eo

 
P

ad
re

 L
ift

 S
ta

tio
n 

In
te

rn
al

 L
ift

 P
um

ps

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

, C
om

pl
et

e 
de

si
gn

 b
y

Ju
ne

 2
01

5

C
on

di
tio

n 
as

se
ss

-
m

en
t o

f p
um

ps
is

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 R
FP

 to
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

fo
r d

e-
si

gn
 s

er
vi

ce
s

w
ill 

be
 

is
su

ed
in

 O
ct

ob
er

.

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

de
si

gn
 

m
em

o 
is

 d
ue

 
M

ar
ch

 1
3t

h 
an

d 
50

%
 d

es
ig

n 
is

 d
ue

 
on

 A
pr

il 
10

th
.

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

de
si

gn
 

m
em

o 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 c

om
-

m
en

ce
d;

 c
om

-
m

en
ts

 d
ue

 b
ac

k 
to

 
C

on
su

lta
nt

in
 A

pr
il.

6
W

et
 W

ea
th

er
 F

lo
w

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
S

ite
 U

se
 S

tu
dy

:
P

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

to
 U

S
D

 
B

oa
rd

 b
y 

M
ay

, 2
01

5
C

om
pl

et
e 

dr
af

t r
ep

or
tb

y 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5.

K
ic

ko
ff 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

nd
.

W
or

ks
ho

p 
N

o.
 1

 is
 

sc
he

du
le

d
fo

r
N

ov
em

be
r 1

8th
.

W
or

ks
ho

p 
N

o.
 1

oc
cu

rre
d 

on
 

N
ov

em
be

r 1
8.

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
 d

ue
 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y.

W
or

ks
ho

p 
N

o.
 2

 
he

ld
on

 J
an

ua
ry

 
6th

.
D

ra
ft 

re
po

rt 
w

as
 re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 
M

ar
ch

.

 

P
ag

e 
12

1 
of

 1
70



7
C

og
en

er
at

io
n

P
ro

je
ct

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

D
ec

em
be

r, 
20

14
.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

en
gi

ne
 g

en
er

at
or

 
sy

st
em

 is
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l t
es

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
en

gi
ne

 
ge

ne
ra

to
r a

nd
 

di
ge

st
er

 g
as

 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
sy

st
em

s
ha

s 
be

gu
n.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

k 
is

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

94
%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

A
cc

ep
te

d 
en

gi
ne

s 
an

d 
di

ge
st

er
 g

as
 

co
nd

iti
on

in
g 

sy
st

em
 o

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 1

7t
h.

  
D

em
ol

iti
on

 a
nd

 s
ite

 
w

or
k 

re
m

ai
n.

  
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
.

Is
su

ed
 S

ub
st

an
tia

l 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
on

 
M

ar
ch

 4
th

.
W

or
k 

on
 p

un
ch

 li
st

 it
em

s 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 

an
d 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 in
to

 th
e 

4th
qu

ar
te

r. 
 

8
Th

ic
ke

ne
r C

on
tro

l 
B

ld
g.

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
P

ro
je

ct

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
le

ct
ric

al
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

(s
tru

ct
ur

e 
on

ly
) b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
15

.

C
om

pl
et

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
m

aj
or

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 w

or
k 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
5.

 

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

N
ov

em
be

r, 
20

16
.

E
xc

av
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 T

P
S

 p
ip

el
in

e 
tre

nc
h 

an
d 

el
ec

tri
ca

l 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

un
da

tio
n

is
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
C

on
st

ru
c-

tio
n 

w
or

k 
is

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

5%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
du

ct
ba

nk
s 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

co
nt

in
ue

d.
  

D
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f a
n 

ex
is

tin
g

sl
ab

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

H
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

M
ix

in
g 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
N

o.
 1

 h
as

 
be

en
 s

lo
w

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
un

fo
re

se
en

 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
ut

ilit
ie

s.
  

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 

TP
S

 p
ip

el
in

e 
& 

m
aj

or
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 

el
ec

tri
ca

l d
uc

t-
ba

nk
s.

  N
ew

 E
le

c-
tri

ca
l B

ld
g 

fo
un

da
-

tio
n 

an
d 

w
al

ls
 a

re
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
  R

oo
f 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
in

 
A

pr
il.

  C
om

m
en

ce
d 

w
ith

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
ns

ta
lla

-
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 
el

ec
tri

ca
l r

oo
m

 in
 

H
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

M
ix

-
in

g 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

N
o.

 1
9

D
ig

es
te

r N
o.

 5
 R

eh
ab

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

5
R

em
ov

al
 o

f s
ea

la
nt

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
do

m
e 

an
d 

co
nc

re
te

 ta
nk

 
w

al
l a

nd
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
fo

rs
te

el
 d

om
e 

su
pp

or
ts

ha
s 

be
gu

n.
W

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
12

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.

D
is

co
ve

re
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

co
rro

si
on

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 th

e 
di

ge
st

er
 

do
m

e 
sk

irt
 th

at
 

re
qu

ire
d 

re
pa

irs
.  

S
til

l o
n 

tra
ck

 fo
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

in
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

.

Is
su

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

on
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
7th

.
C

on
tra

ct
or

 b
eg

an
 

w
or

k 
on

 p
un

ch
 li

st
 

ite
m

s 
an

d 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 in

to
 th

e 
4th

qu
ar

te
r.

P
ag

e 
12

2 
of

 1
70



SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

O
F 

C
IP

 P
R

O
JE

C
TS

 F
O

R
 F

Y’
15

 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
N

um
be

r o
f P

ro
je

ct
s

N
am

es
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

s

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 

Si
x

1.
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s 
B

lv
d.

 S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

  
2.

Ja
rv

is
 A

ve
. S

ew
er

 R
el

oc
at

io
n

3.
N

ew
ar

k 
B

ac
ky

ar
d 

S
ew

er
 R

el
oc

at
io

n
4.

P
in

e 
St

re
et

 E
as

em
en

t R
ep

ai
r

5.
U

pp
er

 H
et

ch
 H

et
ch

y 
S

ew
er

 R
eh

ab
 P

ro
je

ct
6.

V
ea

sy
 S

tre
et

 S
ew

er
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
ys

te
m

 
Fi

ve
1.

B
oy

ce
 R

oa
d 

Li
ft 

St
at

io
n

2.
C

he
rry

 S
tre

et
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

3.
Fr

em
on

t &
 P

P
 L

S
 In

te
rn

al
 L

ift
 P

um
ps

4.
S

te
ve

ns
on

 P
ro

pe
rty

 B
ac

ku
p 

C
om

m
. T

ow
er

5.
W

et
 W

ea
th

er
 F

lo
w

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Tr
ea

tm
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
Te

n
1.

A
er

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 R

eh
ab

2.
C

og
en

er
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

3.
D

ig
es

te
r N

o.
 5

 R
eh

ab
4.

G
en

er
at

or
 C

on
tro

ls
 U

pg
ra

de
5.

M
C

C
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
, P

ha
se

 II
I 

6.
P

la
nt

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
7.

60
” P

rim
ar

y 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 P

ip
e 

R
eh

ab
8.

S
lu

dg
e 

D
ry

in
g 

(B
A

C
W

A
 S

tu
dy

)
9.

Th
ic

ke
ne

r C
on

tro
l B

ld
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

10
.W

at
er

 S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

k 
an

d 
W

el
l

P
ag

e 
12

3 
of

 1
70



 
Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 

Thursday, April 16, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 
Prepared by: P. Eldredge 

 
Commissioners Handley, Dias, Johnson, Peixoto and Prola were all present.   
 
The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 
Minutes, the List of Disbursements, and the Treasurer’s Report.  

 
The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the General Manger, Managers Advisory 
Committee, Financial Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operation & Maintenance, Personnel, and 
Ad-Hoc Committees. The following items were discussed: 

 
General Mangers Report Commissioner Johnson will have Castro Valley Sanitary District’s legal 
counsel provide an explanation of why their Board did not approve the changes to the JPA 
language and guidance on how to move forward with the JPA amendment process. The General 
Manager reviewed possible budget allocation alternatives considered by the MAC, such as use 
existing rate structure, equivalent cost per gallon flow (operations only or also capital budget), 
tiered flow rates, incorporating geographic coverage of each member agency to capital 
equipment replacement, and capital allocation to three funds (core transport system, force 
main, and pump stations). There are varied opinions on how to approach EBDA’s future budget 
structure. The MAC also discussed options for the Hayward Pump Station relocation. Funding 
discussions should include a guarantee of long-term use of the Hayward Ponds. At the MAC’s 
request, the General Manager will hire a consultant to estimate the costs and benefits of 
Hayward Effluent Pump Station relocation to Hayward, USD, and other EBDA members. 

 
Managers Advisory Committee (MAC) The MAC discussed issues in the General Manager’s 
report. 

 
Financial Management Committee approved the March List of Disbursements and Treasurer’s 
Report. The Committee discussed the CSRMA pooled liability program dividend received by EBDA. 
CSRMA has been cost-effective for EBDA in fulfilling insurance needs. 

 
Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report (informational only, no action required) 
for the NPDES permit. The committee reviewed March permit compliance. The General Manager 
updated the Committee on the status of Argos’ climate models on precipitation intensity (more 
droughts, however, more intense rainfall when it does occur) and sea level rise scenarios where 
the sea level rise estimates have been reduced from 55 inches to approximately 36 inches in 
2100 (staff report attached). The Committee discussed how the climate models affect future 
infrastructure needs. Staff was asked to evaluate what affects the king tides may have on EBDA 
facilities, rather than an extensive evaluation of sea-level in 2100. 

 
o Commissioner Dias commented that EBDA should not spend a lot of time or money evaluating 

sea level rise as the threat may not be as severe as previously thought. More focus should be 
Page 124 of 170



placed on what affect “king tides” will have on EBDA facilities as that may be a more 
immediate threat. 
 

O&M Committee reviewed EBDA’s performance and the status of O&M projects. The O&M 
Manager reported that the AEPS Variable Frequency Drive submittal review will be completed by 
this summer. The MDF sodium bisulfite pump replacement is complete, and EBDA has realized a 
savings of ~$60,000 this fiscal year. 

 
Personnel Committee The Personnel Committee conducted its annual review of the Personnel 
Policy. The policy was reviewed by legal counsel and it was determined that no updates were 
necessary at this time. 
 
o Commissioner Dias inquired about the definition of “normal cost” as it relates to PERS and 

would like this to be clarified, in the compensation plan, if possible. 
 
Ad-Hoc Committee  The Ad Hoc Committee discussed the impact of member agency flows on 
EBDA’s rate structure (see attached). The Committee is looking forward to receiving Castro Valley 
Sanitary District’s preferences for updating the language of the JPA. 

 
Closed Session At 10:15 a.m., Chair Handley adjourned the meeting to closed session to discuss 
labor negotiations for the Operations & Maintenance Manager. 

 
Reconvene to Open Session Chair Handley reconvened the meeting at 10:40 a.m. with 
recommendations for Commissions approval of the resolution adopting the fiscal year 
2015/2016 Compensation Plan.  The Commission requested the following changes to the 
compensation plan: 1) the title of Deputy General Manager is amended to Superintendent of 
Operations & Maintenance; 2) employer-paid post-retirement medical is changed from $447 to 
$460; and 3) legal counsel will include PEMHCA minimum and normal costs in the Summary of 
Benefits. 

 
 

 
The Commission unanimously passed the following resolutions: 
 
Adopt the resolution approving the FY 2015/16 Compensation Plan reflecting the budget 
assumptions for FY 2015/16 presented to the Commission in February 2015. Commissioner Prola 
moved to approve the resolution, with noted changes listed above, adopting the fiscal year 2015/16 
Compensation Plan. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously. 

Page 125 of 170



Page 2
Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority
Regulatory Affairs Committee
April 14, 2015

ITEM NO. RA5 CLIMATE MODELS AND INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS

Recommendation
This staff summary updates the Commission on the status of climate models on 
precipitation intensity and sea level rise scenarios.

Background
The Commission has been considering how precipitation, storms and sea level will 
change over the coming decades to help EBDA agencies plan future infrastructure 
needs.  While overall trends, especially on larger scales, are generally pretty clear, the
details are highly uncertain. It is also easier to project with reasonable confidence how 
things like mean precipitation are likely to change in a given location, than it is the less 
frequent but more severe extremes that are critical to effective risk management. 

The Bay Area Joint Policy Committee, a project of the regional government, ABAG, 
recently funded Argos to conduct a pilot project to evaluate the future likelihood of 
droughts and extreme precipitation events in Northern California. They concluded that 
the likelihood of drought is now significantly higher than during the 20th century and that
there is a meaningful chance of droughts considerably longer than any in more than a 
century. Droughts result when the rate of water consumption exceeds the rate at which 
it is being added to the system for long enough to deplete the water stored in the 
system. In California, the storage includes the water content in the Sierra snowpack, as 
well as what is stored in the various reservoirs located throughout the state. Argos
examined 62 decadal projections from 7 global climate models to identify periods of a 
year or more in length with a cumulative precipitation deficit relative to the long term
mean greater than a threshold based on earlier droughts.

The stacked bar on the left shows the frequency of historical droughts and the one on 
the right the frequency of droughts identified in the ensemble of projections. 
Interestingly, the higher frequency of projected droughts is due mostly to longer 
droughts.

S:\Agendas\2014-2015\Regulatory\2015_04 Regulatory Agenda.docx
Page 126 of 170



Page 3
Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority
Regulatory Affairs Committee
April 14, 2015

On the other end of the spectrum, intense rainfall creates its own set of hazards. 
Intensity-Duration-Frequency (IDF) curves are a tool widely used by hydrologists for 
applications ranging from sizing storm drains to estimating the risk of flooding in a 
watershed. The curves represent the frequency (represented by a return time) of a 
given level of rainfall intensity for a given duration. As the climate continues to warm, 
evaporation from the oceans is increasing, leading to larger amounts of moisture in the 
atmosphere, which in turn will result in more frequent and more intense extreme 
precipitation events. This is not accurately reflected in current IDF curves since they 
are based on historical rainfall data. Argos constructed distributions for the change in
intensity for combinations of duration and return time by analyzing an ensemble of 
global climate model projections. This enables the generation of projected IDF curves 
for a given location at a specified point on the distributions for 2026-2045 and 2081-
2100 for different greenhouse gas emissions scenarios.

The current 100 year IDF for the city of Oakland, California is compared to the 50th and
95th percentile projected curves for the end of the century assuming an emissions 
scenario of 3.7° C by 2100.  The increase in intensity can readily be seen, especially for 
shorter durations.

Hydrologists are using downscaled climate projections to assess future changes in 
runoff and flows in watersheds, including the likelihood of droughts and flooding. In 
some cases, an average of several projections has been used in an attempt to
represent the most likely outcome. The downside of this approach is that it tends to 

S:\Agendas\2014-2015\Regulatory\2015_04 Regulatory Agenda.docx
Page 127 of 170



Page 4
Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority
Regulatory Affairs Committee
April 14, 2015

underestimate the risk of both droughts and flooding. A better approach is to
characterize each projection being downscaled in terms of where it lies on a distribution 
constructed from the entire ensemble. Based on this, a suitably dry projection can be 
chosen as a basis for drought assessment and a suitably wet projection for flooding.
The bottom line is that, while it is impossible to predict the future climate with any 
accuracy, it is possible to use the huge investment in climate modeling to get a clearer 
picture of the range of possible outcomes.

To help state agencies incorporate future sea-level rise impacts into planning decisions,
California’s Ocean Protection Council (OPC) regularly updates its State of California 
Sea-Level Rise Guidance Document.  The 2013 update included the best current 
science, as summarized in the recently published final report from the National 
Academy of Sciences, Sea-Level Rise for the Coasts of California, Oregon, and 
Washington (http://www.nap.edu/catalog/13389/sea-level-rise-for-the-coasts-of-
california-oregon-and-washington). The report shows that rates of sea level rise are 
higher in southern California to Cape Mendocino, where there becomes net land uplift
due to regional tectonics and glacial isostatic adjustment (see Figure 5.9 from the 
report). For San Francisco, the amount of sea level rise compared to 2000 is 28 cm (+/-

S:\Agendas\2014-2015\Regulatory\2015_04 Regulatory Agenda.docx
Page 128 of 170



Page 5
Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority
Regulatory Affairs Committee
April 14, 2015

9 cm) in 2050 and 92 cm (+/- 25 cm) in 2100.  While these estimates include glacial 
melting in Greenland and Antarctica, those rates are the most uncertain. Overall, these 
predictions for 2100 are significantly less than the previous 55-inch (140 cm) estimate. 

S:\Agendas\2014-2015\Regulatory\2015_04 Regulatory Agenda.docx
Page 129 of 170



Page 4 Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority

Commission Agenda
April 16, 2015

STAFF REPORT

EBDA MEMBER AGENCY FLOWS

EBDA’s rate structure was developed with the five member agencies – City of Hayward, 
City of San Leandro, Oro Loma Sanitary District, Union Sanitary District, and Castro 
Valley Sanitary District – allocating fixed and variable costs between their annual flows 
and purchasing a share of EBDA’s maximum flows. From EBDA’s NPDES database, it 
is possible to look at the distribution of daily flows among the agencies for the last 15 
years, January 2000 through January 2015, which show a regular annual trend as 
driven by large rainstorms.

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

Jan-00 Dec-04 Dec-09 Dec-14

Fl
ow

 (M
G

D)
 

  

EBDA flows 2000-2015 

EBDA

USD

HAY

CSL

OLSD

Page 130 of 170



Page 5 Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority

Commission Agenda
April 16, 2015

It is also possible to evaluate these average daily flow data over the 15-year span as a 
probability plot, which demonstrates the relative rarity of these high flow events. 

Percentage Composition of EBDA Flows During Wettest Days Compared to Fixed 
Rate and Fixed Rate modified for LAVWMA contribution.

%USD %HAY %CSL %OLSD
Top 0.02% 29.1% 19.6% 9.7% 37.6%
Top 0.1% 27.8% 18.4% 8.9% 36.6%
Top 1% 31.1% 17.5% 8.1% 28.9%
Top 2% 32.5% 17.3% 7.9% 26.5%
Top 10% 36.4% 17.6% 7.8% 21.8%
Median 38.9% 17.9% 7.4% 20.0%
Fixed Rate 25.3% 20.7% 13.2% 40.8%
Fixed Rate 
w/ LAVWMA 

21.6% 17.6% 11.2% 34.8%

These flows are characterized in EBDA’s budget which is presented below for allocation 
by the following categories with the percentage contribution to the different member 
agencies.  The major drivers to the budget are fixed rate (39%) – allocated by capacity 
ownership, variable rate (36%) – allocated by total flows, and NPDES fees (12%) 
allocated by permitted average dry day flows.  The capital budget is entirely based on 
capacity ownership.

Page 131 of 170



Page 6 Agenda Explanation
East Bay Dischargers Authority

Commission Agenda
April 16, 2015

These budget allocation categories were developed in the initial JPA agreement, but 
have been modified by specific Board resolutions to more directly allocate costs to the 
cost drivers (e.g. RMP rate based on metals loadings and permit fees based on NPDES 
permitted flows).  It would be possible to further revise these operating and capital 
allocations based on:

Total flows
Permitted flows
Flows tiered to average and a few specific high rates (e.g. MDF totals at 120/150 
MGD)
Geographic coverage of different parts of the EBDA system (e.g. pump stations 
and force main)

While it would be possible to have a consultant allocate EBDA’s operating and capital 
budget into these various categories, the uncertainty around these allocations might be 
more easily captured in a simple staff summary of possible allocations and 
consideration of those alternatives by the MAC to develop a recommendation for the 
Commission.

Member Agency Allocation Percentage
% EBDA-O&M C.S.L. O.L.S.D. C.V.S.D. Hayward U.S.D. LAVWMA

39% O&M Fix Rate 13.20% 26.50% 14.30% 20.70% 25.30% 17.34%
36% O&M Var Rate 9.1% 17.4% 6.6% 21.6% 45.3% 20.3%

Special Projects 
12% NPDES Permit 9.61% 16.43% 8.85% 23.39% 41.72% 26.62%
5% NPDES  Rate 13% 18% 6% 30% 33% 17.34%
5% RMP Rate 9.53% 11.65% 6.27% 32.17% 40.37% 18.36%
0.4%WERF Rate 9.1% 17.4% 6.6% 21.6% 45.3% 0
5%Spec Proj Rate 13% 18% 6% 30% 33% 15.97%
2%Direct Lab Cost
2% Recycled Water

Page 132 of 170



P
ag

e 
1

A
ge

nd
a 

E
xp

la
na

tio
n

E
as

t B
ay

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
rs

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ge
nd

a
A

pr
il 

16
, 2

01
5

P
ag

e 
13

3 
of

 1
70



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 21, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11g - Meeting of April 27, 2015
Information Item: Discuss Topics for the General Manager Check-in 
Workshop Scheduled for April 30, 2015

Recommendation

None.  Information only.

Background

Per the direction of the December 15, 2014 Board mini-retreat, a Board of Directors 
check-in with the General Manager has been scheduled for Thursday, April 30, 2015, at 
USD Offices at 6:30 p.m. The retreat will be conducted in workshop format and will be 
an open session.  Staff has identified the following potential topics for discussion:

Compensation Plan
Collection Services 3rd Coach Update
Goals for FY 2016
Schedule and Process for Annual Performance Evaluation

Staff requests the Board identify any additional topics of interest to be included in the 
check-in.  Staff will then develop a formal agenda.

Page 134 of 170



Page 135 of 170



Page 136 of 170



Page 137 of 170



Page 138 of 170



Page 139 of 170



Page 140 of 170



Page 141 of 170



Page 142 of 170



Page 143 of 170



Page 144 of 170



Page 145 of 170



Page 146 of 170



Page 147 of 170



Page 148 of 170



Page 149 of 170



Page 150 of 170



Page 151 of 170



Page 152 of 170



Page 153 of 170



Page 154 of 170



Page 155 of 170



Page 156 of 170



Page 157 of 170



Page 158 of 170



Page 159 of 170



Page 160 of 170



Page 161 of 170



Page 162 of 170



Page 163 of 170



Page 164 of 170



Page 165 of 170



Page 166 of 170



Page 167 of 170



Page 168 of 170



Page 169 of 170



Page 170 of 170


